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PART 1.

Item 1. Financial Statements
PROLOGIS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

June 30,
2010 December 31,
(Unaudited) 2009
ASSETS
(R LT LTS ) (=SSN $ 14,953,56( $ 15,215,89¢
Less accumulated depreciatian 1,801,602 1,671,10(
13,151,95¢ 13,544,79¢
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated INVESIEES.............oveiiiiceeriiieee e eerrrae e 2,056,812 2,151,72¢
Cash and Cash BIVAIENTS............oiiiiiiiie ettt see e e e s et eenbnee s 25,102 34,362
Accounts and NOLES FECEIVANIE.............uiiie e e e e e e e s rmnee s snnaa e e e e e snnnees 153,193 136,754
Other assets 1,011,414 1,017,78(
Total assets $ 16,398,47¢ $ 16,885,41¢F
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
=Y o PSPPSR $ 8,176,17¢ $ 7,977,77¢
Accounts payable and aCCrued EXPENSES. .......cuuieiuiiaiiereeee et eriee et e et eeesmeesib e e rbe e e abeeeabee e seenens 397,685 455,91¢
Other liabilities...... 465,25C 444,432
Total liabilities 9,039,11: 8,878,12¢

Equity:
ProLogis shareholdes 6 equi t y:
Series C Preferred Shares at stated liquidation preference of $50 per share;
$0.01 par value; 2,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2010 and
DECEMDBDET 31, 2009......cuueieiiiiieiitie e rieei ettt ettt ettt e a e e b bt e b bt eean ettt e e nb e e nabeeabnee e 100,00C 100,00C
Series F Preferred Shares at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share;
$0.01 par value; 5,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2010 and
DECEMDBDET 31, 2009.......uteieiiiiieiitie e rteei ettt ettt et b e e abeeee e e e tb e e eab e e be e e e nb e eean e tb e e e nb e e e nbeeareee e 125,00C 125,00C
Series G Prefeed Shares at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share;
$0.01 par value; 5,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2010 and

D= Tot oY o] o= g 2 010 1 SO EU PR 125,00C 125,00C
Common Shares; $0.01 par vgld&6,696 shares issued and outstanding at
June 30, 2010 and 474,162 shares issued and outstanding at December.31,.2009................. 4,767 4,742
Additional PAIGIN CAPITAL. .......eeiieieiiiie ittt 8,566,38¢ 8,524,867
Accumulated other comprehsive iINCOME (I0SS).........uiiiiieiiiiie et (386,546 42,298
Distributions in @XCesS Of NEt BAIMMINGS......ccuuiiiiiieiii ettt st sbeeneas (1,192,677 (934,583
Total ProLogis .s.har.ehol.der.sd..eqgui.t.y. . 7,341,93: 7,987,32¢
[N o] aTete gl u o] TaTo 11 (=] =1 £ TSRS 17,434 19,962
LI L= =T [0 PRSP PRPSSPN 7,359,36€ 8,007,28¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 16,39847¢ $  16,885,41F

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



PROLOGIS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)
Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Revewues:
RENTAIINCOME.......iiiiiiei e e ee e $ 229,79C $ 224,882 $ 460,018 $ 440,974
Property management and other fees and incentives.............ccocveeecenveeeninnen. 28,307 31,774 56,969 65,408
CDFS diSPOSItiON PrOCEEAS. ...ceeiiiuitiiiieeeiitieeetie e e e et ee e ettt e eeee e e e sinbeeea e anes - - - 180,237
Development management and other incame 2,634 1,823 3,710 4,584
TOAl FEVENUES. ... 260,731 258,47¢ 520,697 691,208
Expenses:
RENLAI EXPENSES ..ottt e 65,274 68,884 132,851 135,60C
Investment management expenses. 9,931 10,819 20,250 21,395
General and admiNiStratiVE............cciiiiiiiiieer e 38,921 41,450 80,927 89,693
Reduction in workforce.................... - 6,868 - 11,330
Impairment of real ¢ate properties... . 367 84,218 367 84,218
Depreciation and amortiZation...........ccooiiuiiiieieeee e eeese e 87,476 76,941 173,675 151,391
Oher EXPENSES.....ci ittt ettt sttt e et eemne e s 4,649 4,584 8,916 11,003
TOtAl EXPENSES. ..cce ittt ettt re e st e e e eenes 206,618 293,764 416986 504,63C
Operating INCOME (JOSS)......cciiuiiiiiiie ittt 54,113 (35,285 103,711 186,572
Other income (expense):
Earnings (loss) from unconsolidated property fumes,.............ccocveevieriienieeenne (44) 17,398 5,850 19,496
Earnings from other unconsolidated investees,.net... . 3,348 1,342 5,427 3,543
INtErest EXPENSE.....coiieiiiiieeiiie et (118,920 (83,049 (228,899 (175,981
Other income (expense), Net.........ccccveevvererceenenen. (1,370) 859 (1,542 4,175
Net gains on dispositions of real estate properties..........ccccceevvieeniiieeeeesiennnn. 10,959 7,904 22,766 8,792
Foreign currency exchange gains (I0SSeS), MEL.........cccviriiiieacenieeeniieenieeenne (7,206 (9,025 (3,518 21,512
Gain (loss) on earlgxtinguishment of debit.......... . 975 143,28C (46,658 161,208
Total other iINCOMEe (EXPENSE).......vviiiiieiiiiieieeeie et (112,258 78,709 (246,574 42,745
Earnings (Ioss) before iNnCOMe taXes.........cccuviiiiiiiieenie e (58,145 43,424 (142,863 229,31¢
Currentincome tax expense 598 12,577 10,351 34,766
Deferred income tax benefit (40,847 (8,771 (42,398 (15,599
TOtal INCOME TAXES. .. .eeiieieiiiie ettt (40,249 3,806 (32,047 19,167
Earnings (loss) from continuiNg OPEOANS..........c.eiiiiiiieiiieeicree e (17,896 39,618 (110,816 210,151
Discontinued operations:
Income attributable to disposed properties...........cccoovvveivmmiieiiiienii e 327 8,897 592 20,649
Net gain related to disposed asge@hina operations............ccccoecvveervieecenneenne - - - 3,315
Net gains on dispositions:
Non-development properties...........cccvvvereriieeneniieenecesinene 979 185,521 9,062 185,521
Development properties and land subject to ground leases - 11,692 65 11,503
Total discontinued Operations...........ccccceeerveeeecerieeennenen. 1,306 206,11C 9,719 220,98¢€
Consolidated net earnings (I0SS).........cccoeeriirerceenenen. (16,590 245,728 (101,097 431,13¢€
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests...... (191 (494 (444 (804
Net earnings (loss) attributable to controlling interests... (16,781 245,234 (101,541 430,33t
Less preferred share dividends............c.ccceviiieecinnnnne 6,369 6,369 12,738 12,738
Net earnings (loss) attributable to common shares.... ..$ (23150 $ 238,865 $ (114,279 $ 417,597
Weighted average common shares outstandBagic..... 476,791 406,53¢ 475,898 342,182
Weighted average common shares outstandBityted..............ccccocoveiiiieeciiieennns 476,791 409,504 475,898 345,10€
Net earnings (loss) per share attributable to common sh&asic:
CONtINUING OPEIAtIONS ....ecvviueiieieiieie e eeeeeee sttt eeae et sae e e e seeeneenen (0.05, $ 0.08 $ (0.26 $ 0.57
Discontinued operations - 0.51 0.02 0.65
Net earnings (loss) per share attriitable to common shares Basic...................... $ (0.05 $ 0.59 $ (0.24 $ 1.22
Net earnings (loss) per share attributable to common shBikged:
CONtINUING OPEIALIONS ... .eeieeeiiieeiieeieeieeeee ettt e sneesteeene e e seeeneeesneesnneaneen $ 0.05 $ 0.08 $ (0.26' $ 0.57
DiScoONtiNUEd OPEIEINS. .........eviiiiiiiiiieeeiee ettt e et e e e e ennes - 0.50 0.02 0.64
Net earnings (loss) per share attributable to common sharedDiluted.................... $ (0.05 $ 0.58 $ (0.24' $ 1.21
Distributions per COMMON SNAIE.........iiiiiiiiiiii e $ 0.15 $ 0.15 $ 0.30 $ 0.40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



PROLOGIS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY
Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Common Shares Accumulated  Distributions
Number Additional Other in Excess of Non-
Preferred of Par Paid-in  Comprehensive Net controlling Total
Shares Shares  Value Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Interests Equity

Balance as of January 1, 2010..........cccccevevnee $ 350,00C 474,162% 4,742% 8,524,861 % 42,298 $ (934,583 $ 19,962 $ 8,007,28¢
Consolidated net earnings (loss) - - - - - (101,541 444 (101,097
Issuances of common shares under

common share plans, net of issuancescost. - 2,484 25 26,602 - - - 26,627
Conversions of noncontrolling

INTErestS, NeL...coiviiiiiieiee e - 50 - 318 (318 -
Foreign currency translatidosses, net............ - - - - (409,567 - (2,302 (411,869
Unrealized losses and amortization on

derivative contracts, Net.........ccccooeerriiereenn. - - - - (29,277 - - (29,277
Cost of shardased compensation awards..... - - - 14,601 - - - 14,601
DiStrBULIONS......eeeivecieeiieriececeeceeeee e - - - - - (156,553 (352 (156,905
Balance as of June 30, 2010 $ 350,00C 476,69€$ 4,767 $ 8,566,38¢ $ (386,546 $ (1,192,677 $ 17,434 $ 7,359,36€

PROLOGIS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Unaudited)
(In thousands)
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2010 2009
Net earnings (loss) attributable to controlling INErESES.........cccuviiiiiiiieeic e $ (101541, $ 430,33¢
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation [0SSES,.NEL.......cciuii it ettt ettt sme et e sbeeeaa (409,567 (67,198
Unrealized gains (losses) and amortization on derivative CONtractS, NeL............eeeeeivceeriiiiieeeeiiiiiee e esiies (19,277 12,517

Comprehensive incomelfss) attributable to common shares $ (530,385 $ 375,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



PROLOGIS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2010 2009

Operating activities:

Net earnings (loss) attributable to controlling interests $ (101,541 $ 430,33¢E
Adjustments to reconcile net earnin@oss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Noncontrolling interest share in arniNgs, eL...........cii ittt 444 948
SHAIGNEINEA TENES. ...ttt b et b et sa e e e be e e e bb e e s beeesmnennne (21,511 (29,372
Cost of shardased COMPENSAtION AWAIHS..........cciiviiiiiiieeerie et eei et e e see s 11,909 12,9
Depreciation and amortization . 173,802 161,893
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated INVESLEES............eiiiiiiiieriii e (11,277 (23,841
Changes in operating receivables and distributions from unconsolidated investees....................... 53,525 32,286
Amortization of deferred 10an COSES.........cociiiiiiiiiiiicr e 13,917 6,249
Amortization of debt diSCOUNT, NBL.........cooiiiiiii e e 27,532 35,343
Impairment of real estate PrOPEIIES. .......c.viiiiiii ettt 367 84,218
Gains on dispositions of assets included in discontiopedations.............. (9,127 (200,339
Gains recognized on disposition of investments in Japan property funds..... . - (180,237
Gains recognized on property diSpositions, Net...........ccccocviiiceeniiennnen. . (22,766 (8,792
Loss (gain) on early extinguishmesftdebt..............c.ccoceees 46,658 (161,208
Unrealized foreign currency exchange losses (gains),.net.... 4,229 (43,837
Deferred income tax benefit...............coooeiiiiii (42,398 (15,611
Decrease in accounts and notes receivable and other.assets..........cccocvieevreiienie e 32,689 70,492
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities.............c.ccceeviiniiiiiens (57,322 (40,470
Net cash provided by operating aCtiVIties.............coiiiiiiieereiii e 99,130 140,95¢

Investing activities:
ReEal State INVESIMEIALS. .....coiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e e e s e anees (252,166 (853,039
Tenant improvements and lease commissions on previously leased.space... (22,781 (24,533
Non-development capital expenditures............cceevveeiieniineenns . (11,836 (8,210
Investments in and net advances to unconsolidated investees...... . (137,731 (103,833
Proceeds from disposition of investments in Japan property funds............ccocoveiecniiieiiiee e - 500,00C
Return of investment from unconsolidated INVESIEES............c.ooviiieenrieieccee e 41,644 32,119
Proceeds from dispositions of real estate a$s€tina orations. . - 845,46¢
Proceeds from dispositions Of real State ASSELS.........ccuiiiuiiircriiiiee ettt 260,02€ 959,914
Proceeds from repayment of NOtES reCeIVADIE. ...........occuiiiiieeec it 388 8,222
Net cash (used in) provided by iNnvesting aCtiVILIES...........c.coiiiiiiemiiciii e (122,456 1,356,10¢

Financing activities:
Proceeds from sales and issuances 0f COMMON SNATES............cccoovierreiiie e 28,714 1,155,53¢
Distributions paid 0N COMMON SNAMES..........coiiiiiiiii et ettt e e (143,815 (133,292
Dividends paid on preferred SNares.............ooiiii et et (12,708 (12,708;
Noncontrolling interest distributions, net... (352 (685
Debt and equity iSSUANCE COSES PAIH..........coiriiiiiiereeiie ettt (25,270 (47,567
Net payments 0N Credit faCilitIES . ........oouii it (275,508 (2,250,229t
Repurchase of senior and convertible seniorsatel extinguishment of secured mortgage debt........ (1,190,463 (640,167
Proceeds from issuance of senior and convertible senior notes and secured mortgage .debt.......... 1,686,38¢ 390,952
Payments on senior notes, secured mortgage debt asgrasst bonds............ccceevviiiiiieerie e (50,439 (56,245
Net cash provided by (used in) financing ACtIVItIES............cccuiiiiiiiecciii e 16,547 (1,594,471
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on.cash..............cooieeeniiic e (2,481 (3,048
Net decrease in cashdanash equivalents.............ccccoeveeiienee (9,260 (100,453
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 34,362 174,63€
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 25,102 $ 74,183

See Note 12or information on nofcash inesting and financing activities and other information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



PROLOGIS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
1. General
BusinessProLogis, collectively with our consolidatedss i di ari es (fMei@ompdowyd o0or AiMBWoLOgi s0), is a r
estate investment trust (AREITO0O) that owns, operat dysandmtnal devel ops (¢

properties in North America, Europe and Asia. Our current busstestegy includes two reportable business segments: direct owned and
investment management. Our direct owned segment represents the diréetrioogvnership of industrial and retail properties. Our investment
management segment represents the-tenginvestment management of property funds and other unconsolidated investees, and the properties
they own. See Note 11 for further discussion of our business segments.

Basis of PresentatioriThe accompanying consolidated financial statements, preseritezlihS. dollar, are prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (AGAAPO). Gdlambuntsacdqui res us
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets aiilitiéatas of the date of the financial statements and revenue and expenses during the

reporting period. Our actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. All material intercompany sanfiactmsolidated

entities have been elimated.

The accompanying unaudited interim financial information has been prepared according to the rules and regulations $étheitieSand

Exchange Commi ssion (ASECO0). Certain infor mat ciastatementd préparedinn ot e di scl c
accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted in accordance with such rules and regulations. Our managemeat thedieves th

disclosures presented in these financial statements are adequate to make the informatied potsaisleading. In our opinion, all adjustments

and eliminations, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly our financial positiorec8002010, our

results of operations for the three and six months ended30,2€10 and 2009, and our cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and

2009 have been included. We have evaluated all subsequent events for adjustment to or disclosure in these financsathstaighére

issuance of these financial statetsefhe results of operations for such interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full

year. The accompanying unaudited interim financial information should be read in conjunction with our December 31, 2008t€bnso

FinancialStatements, as filed with the SEC in our Annual Report on Forka 10

Certain amourgtincluded in the accompanying ConsolidatethRcialStatements for 2009 have been reclassified to conform t20th@
financial statement presentation.

Recent Accourihg Pronouncementsln June 2009, thEi nanci al Ac c o u n tFASB] )ssBeda netvaacalrigtingBtanaarddhat( A

waseffective on January 1, 2010. This accounting standard is a revision to a previous FASB interpretation and changestimgweatigpo

evaluates whether an entity is a variable interesEamisthergfore( AVI E0) ar
required to consolidate such VIE. This accounting standard also megugeingassessments at eagporting period of which party within the

VIE is considered the primmabeneficiary and additiondisclosures e | a t e d The adoption &f éhis standard on January 1, 2010 did not

have a material impact on our financial position or results of apesat

2. Sale of China Operations and Property Fund Interest in Japan

On February 9, 2009, we sold our operations in China and our property fund interests in Japan to affiliates of GICeRt# Esthestate
investment company of the Gawenent of Singapore Investment Corporation, for total cash consideration dfilitr8($845.5 million related
to China and $500.0 million related to the Japan investments). We used the proceeds primarily to pay down borrowicigsibrfieailities.

At December 31, 2008, we recognized an impairrabatgebased on the carrying valuestbé netassets ofhe China operations, as compared
with the estimated sales proceeds less costs to sell. In connection with the sale in the first quartewefr2668nized a $3.3 million gain.

In connection with the sale of our investments in the Japan propertyifutidsfirst quarter of 2009ve recognized a net gain of $180.2 million.
The gain is reflected &DFS Disposition Proceeds our Consolidate®tatements of Operations, as it represents the recognition of previously
deferred gains on the contribution of properties to these property funds based on our ownership interest in the preperttyeftinte of

original contribution. We also recogn&z&20.5 million in current income tax expense related to a portion of the transaction.



PROLOGIS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Unaudited)

3. Real Estate

Real estate assets are presented at cost, and consist of the following (in thousands):

June 30, December 31,
2010 2009

Industrial properties (1):

03T 0T 0 1Y7=o I =T o o OSSR $ 2,608,987 $ 2,625,88¢

Buildings @and iMPrOVEMENTS .........iiiiiieiiie ettt ettt eeee e e sieee s 8,879,49¢ 8,919,61¢€
Retail and office properties (2):

1a] o] (0)VZ=To I F= 1o (o N PRSP PUTUPPRPRI 76,239 76,239

BuildingSand iIMPIrOVEMENIS. ........coiiiiiiiiie ettt e et beesbe e e e e s aabe e e e e e sebb e e eeenee e e s eneeeas 227,18¢ 226,59¢
Properties under development, including cost of [and.(3)..........cccceiriiieeneiiiici e, 199,434 191,127
Land held for deVelOPMENT (4)......eei e it ieee ettt eee e e b e e e e ibb e e e s emnee s abaeea e, 2,282,22¢ 2,569,34:
Land subject to ground leases and other.... 430,34¢ 373,22
Other INVESIMENES (5. ..teeeuteieiitie et ite ettt et bbbt e e bt e e s st s eme st e e sn e e e nnbeeabaeeens 249,643 233,665

Total real @SLAtE ASSEES.......viirierieiree ettt 14,953,56( 15,215,89¢
Less accumulated depreCiatiQn............oiueieiiiieee ettt 1,801,602 1,671,10C
Net real estate assets $ 13,151,95¢ $ 13,544,79¢

(1) At June 30, 201@nd December 31, 2009, we hhd87and 1,188 industrial properties consistind 827 million square feet and 191.6
million square feet, respectivelyhis includes operating properties developed that we refer &s our completed development propesti

(2) At bothJune 30, 201@nd December 31, 2009, we hHadretail properties consisting df.0million square feetWe also owned two office
propertieswith anaggregate costf $39.3million and $39.1 million at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 28§8ectively.

(3) Propertiesunder development consisted gb@perties aggregatinrg5million square feet at June 30, 2041@d Sproperties aggregatiry9
million square feet at December 31, 2009. Our total expected investment upon completiomagetteep under development at June 30,
2010was $459.8nillion, includingland,development and leasing costs.

(4) Land held fordevelopment consisted ©6,101acres and 10,36fcres at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively and includes
landparcels that we may develop or sell depending on market conditions and other factors.

(5) Other investmentmayinclude: (i)restricted funds that are held in escrow pending the completion-defaxed exchange transactions
involving operating propess; (ii) certain infrastructure costs related to projects we are developing on behalf of otheast§iipcurred
related to future development projects, including purchase options on larmhgis)related to our corporate office buildings, whieh w
occupy; and (vearnest money deposits associated with potential acquisitions.

At June 30, 2010, we owned real estate assets in North America (Canada, Mexico and tHetateggurope (Austria, Belgium, the Czech
Republic, France, Germany, Hungaigly, the Netherlands, Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom) and Asia
(Japan and South Korea).

During the six months ended June 30, 201®recognized net gains of $22rllion, whichrelated o the contribution of land ammperating
properties to unconsolidated investees ($19.1 million gaid)the sale of land parcétsthird partieg$3.7 million gain).

The contribution activity resulted in cash proceeds of $150.1 million relatatetdevelopment property aggreggtth6 million square feet
contributedto ProLogis European Properties Fuhdhe sale of 90% of one development property in Japan with 0.5 million square feet and the
contribution ofone development property aggregating 0.3 million square feet to PsoNogth American Industrial Properties Fukide

continue to own 10% of the Japan property, which is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, and we cceatiage tioem

property.

We also received cash proceeds of $34.6 million related wotiteibution of41 acres of lantb ProLogis European Properties Fuhdn which
we will develop an 0.8 million square foot building on behalf of the property fund and earn development fees.

During thefirst quarter of 2010, we received proceeds183 million, which represented the development costs we incurred relating to the sale
of a building in Japan to a third party. As we have a purchase option on this building, we recorded a liability foréoeivashand did not
recognize a sale for acauing purposes.

If we realize a gain on contribution of a property, we recognize the portion attributable to the third party ownershpifppetheor thgroperty
fund until the property is sold to a third party. If we realize a loss on contributéorecognize the full amount of the impairment as soon as it is
known. Due to our continuing involvement through our ownership in the propertyfuidthe case of the Japan property, the property,itself
these dispositions are not included in discargthoperations. See Ndidor further discussion of properties we sold to third parties that are
reported in discontinued operations.
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On June 4, 2010, we acquired six properties aggregating 1.0 million square feet with a combined purchase priceilkib6@Hich was
allocated to real estate and other assets.

During the second quarter of 2009, we recorded impairment charges of $84.2 million related primarily to completed depety@riars in
Europe and Mexico that we expected to contributenttonsolidated property funds. The charges represented the difference between the
estimated proceeds from disposition and our cost basis and were due to our intent at that time to contribute theseSomjeenfiése
properties have been contributedthwthe remainder now being held for long term investment, net of the impairment.

Changes in economic and operating conditions and our ultimate investment intent with regard to our investments in leradigepaperties
that occur in the future magsult in additional impairment charges.

4, Unconsolidated Investees
Summary of Investments

Our investments in and advances to unconsolidated investees,wehattount for under the equity methade summarized by type of investee
as follows (in thousands):

June 30, December 31,
2010 2009
[0 o 1= 4V 10 o [T $ 1,776,64¢ $ 1,876,65(
Other investees.... . 280,166 275,073
Totals $ 2,056,812 $ 2,151,72:

Property Funds

We have investments in several property futhas own portfolios of operating industrial properties. Many of these properties were originally

developed byisand contributed to these property funds, although certain of the property funds have also acquired properties fromghird part

When we cormrtbute a property to a property fund, we may receive ownership interests as part of the proceeds generated by the.céfeributio

earn fees for acting as manager of the property funds and the properties they own. We may earn additional fees bytipeogeimiges

including, but not limited to, acquisition, development, construction management, leasing and financing activities. \&t eaay micentive
performance returns based on the investorsd returns over a specifiec

Summarized informatimregarding our investments in the property funds is as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Earnings (loss) from unconsolidated property funds:
NOFth AMEIICAL ... et $ (5,385 $ 9,495 $ (8,199 $ 953
0 (o] o 1= T TP PP PPTPPPRPPPROPPIN 5,134 7,201 13,663 15,075
STttt 207 702 386 3,468
Total earnings (loss) from unconsolidated property funds, net............... $ (44) $ 17,398 $ 5,850 $ 19,496
Property management and other fees and incentives:
NOIh AMEIICA. ...ttt et $ 14,712 $ 15,325 $ 29,088 $ 30,795
12,372 12,282 25,267 24,732
187 332 376 2,175
Total property management and other fees and incentives $ 27,271 $ 27,939 $ 54,731 $ 57,702

We also earned property management fees from jointirenand other entitied $1.0 million and $2.2nillion during thethree and six months
ended June 30, 2010 and $&Blion and .7 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2@§Sectively.

Information about our investments in the property funds is asael{dollars in thousands):
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Ownership Percentage Investment in and Advances to
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
Property Fund (1) 2010 2009 2010 2009
ProLogis California...........ccccveveeiiiiieeee e 50.0% 50.0% $ 94,230 $ 94,498

ProLogis North American Properties Fund.l................cccoceuee. 41.3% 41.3% 18,248 21,295
ProLogis North American Properties Fund.Vl..............c.co..... 20.0% 20.0% 33,355 34,424
ProLogis North American Properties Fund VIL..............cc........ 20.0% 20.0% 31,925 32,289
ProLogis North American Properties Fund VIIL..............c....... 20.0% 20.0% 11,810 12,283
ProLogis North American Properties Fund. Xl..............ccceee 20.0% 20.0% 23,618 22,115
ProLogis North American Industrial Fund.............ccccoooeeiieenes 23.1% 23.0% 240,708 241,98¢
ProLogis North American Industrial Fund.ll...............cccceeenee. 37.0% 37.0% 316,395 336,511
ProLogis North American Industrial Fund ll................cccooee. 20.0% 20.0% 137,292 140,047
ProLogis Mexico Industrial Fund................... 242% 24.2% 70,476 74,754
ProLogis European .Rr.op.eur.t.i.e 33.1% 24.8% 455,01¢ 383,38¢
ProLogis European Pr op.eur.t.i.e 31.8% 32.1% 323,192 461,631
ProLogis Korea FUNQ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiirenicesiee e 20.0% 20.0% 20,381 21,426
Totals $ 1,776,64€ $ 1,876,65(

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2009, we recognized an impairment charge that represented the entire carrying value afhentsrines
ProLogis North American Properti€sinds IX and X after events indicated that we may not be able to recover our investment. We do not
have any material financial exposure related to our investmetitesa property fund#s a result, we are no longer recognizing our share
of the earningsr lossgenerated by these property funds and we have not includegtbesety funds in our disclosures beginning
January 1, 2010During the second quarter of 2010, ProLogis North American PropertiedXwmhveyed all its properties to its lender
with no additional loss to us.

(2) Included in our investment balaraes 7.0 million preferred units in PEPR with an annual 10.5% dividemel preferred units are
convertible into common units at a rate of one for one at our option. PEPR has theoomieem the uniten, or after, December 2008
in certain limited circumstanceBuring the first quarter of 2010, we purchased 15.8 million additormlmmon uni ts of PEPR for
million ($109.2 million).

Certain property funds have equity commitments from us and our fund partners. We may fulfill our equity commitment thtobgtiors of
properties or castor the commitments may expire unuséulir fund partners fulfill their equity commitment with cash.

The following table outlines the activity of these commitments in 2010 (in millions):

NAIF (1) Mexico (2) PEPF I (3)

Fund
Fund Fund ProLogis  ProLogis Partners
ProLogis Partners  ProLogis Partners Series A SeriesB  Series B

Remaining equity commitments at

December 31, 2009.........c.cccevvrrvirriienieennenns $ 184 $ 375 % 443 $ 246.7 0 2959 163.7 0 515.8
Capital called............ccoeeviiiiiiiceee, (5.4, (17.8 - - - (18.7 (59.0
Expiration of commitments...........c.cccccoviieiiees (13.0 (19.7 - - - - -
Remaining equity commitments at

June 30, 2010 (local currency).......cccvevveenen. $ - $ - $ 443 $ 246.7 U 295.9 U 145.0 U 456.8
Remaining equity commitments at

June 30, 2010 (in U.S. doliz) $ - $ - $ 443 $ 2467 $ 3633 $ 1780 $ 560.8

(1) Inthe first quarter 02010, the ProLogis North American Industrial Fuadled $23.2million of capitalto acquire one property from asd
to repay debtThe remainingequity commitments expired at the end of February 2010.

(2) On August 2, 2010, ProLogis Mexico Industrial Fund called capital of $75 million to repay $19.6 million in amounts ovatHt$550
million of securednortgage debt. Our portion of the cabtition was $1.1 millionln connection withhe call wereduced our ownership
in the property fund to 2094.he remaining commitments will expire unused on August 17, 2010.

3) PEPF 11 6s equity c¢ommi tQuecomnstmentsiecludeeommitment @nthe Seridsunits ¢hat weare required
to fund with cash. Durinthe second quarter @010, wecontributed 41 acres of land and one completed development property to PEPF Il
for gross proceeds of $73.5 million and PEPF Il acquired a projpentya third party. These acquisitions were financed by PEPF Il with
all equity, including our canvestment of $23.4 million in cash under this commitm#ére.did not make any contributions in 20402009
under the Serie& commitment.
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(Unaudited)

On July 30, 2010PEPF Il called capitalaf 2 82 mi | | i on
us and third parties, fund development costs and pay down debt. Our share is approximately $89 million. The remalining capit

commitments will expire unused @wgust 16, 2010.

under

t he

Seri es

commi t ment .

Summarizedinancialinformation of the property funds (for the entire entity, not our proportionate share) and our investment in such funds is

presented below (dollars in millions):

North
2010 America Europe Asia Total
For the three months ended June 30, 2010:
REVENUES......ccveiiieiiiecie ettt sneeae e 199.3 $ 169.5 $ 2.8 $ 371.6
Net earnings (I0SS) (1)....ccvvevverveerieeieeeneeeieeveesiee s (33.2 $ 6.7 $ 1.0 $ (25.5,
For the six months ended June 30, 2010:
REVENUES......ctieiieiiie et n 401.1 $ 356.2 $ 5.7 $ 763.0
Net earnings (I0SS) (1)....ccvveveerieerieeieeeneeeeesveesiee s (57.3 $ 23.2 $ 1.9 $ (32.2]
As of June 30, 2010:
Qo] = U 11T ST 9,182.6 $ 7,618.1 $ 141.8 $ 16,942F
AMOUNLS AUE 10 US (2).eevveereeeirerieenieeseneeesieeseeesreeseeenees 52.4 $ 3.0 $ 0.2 $ 55.6
Third party debt (3).....ccoveierereiiie e 5,067.3 $ 3,412.2 $ 45.6 $ 8,5625.1
Total Fabilities........cocooeiiiieri e 5,365.5 $ 4,131.1 $ 48.9 $ 9,545.5
NoNcontrolling INtEreSt.........ccveveereeiiesereesee e 12.0 $ 105 $ - $ 225
Fund part.ner.s.0..e.qui.t. Y. 3,805.1 $ 3,476.5 $ 92.9 $ 7,374.5
Our weighted average ownerst@) ............ccceevveerirecennen. 27.8% 32.4% 20.0% 29.8%
Our investment balance (5).......ccoovvvveiveeiiiennie e, 978.0 $ 778.2 $ 20.4 $ 1,776.6
Deferred gains, net of amortization (6)...........ccccceervennen. 240.0 $ 299.3 $ - $ 539.3
North
2009 America Europe Asia Total
For the three months ended June 30, 2009:
REVENUES.......oiiiiiiiiii et 217.7 $ 177.9 $ 2.7 $ 398.3
Net earnings (I0SS) (1)....ecveveererrireieeeneeseeeieeneee e 134 $ 17.9 $ 35 $ 34.8
For the six months ended June 30, 2009:
REVENUES. ..ottt 436.5 $ 344.5 $ 35.6 $ 816.6
Net earnings (I0SS) (1) .cvveeiureeririe et (18.7 $ 36.7 $ 14.5 $ 325
As of December 31, 2009:
Total assets........cccevueenne. 9,700.0 $ 8,807.5 $ 150.6 $ 18,658.1
AMOUNLS dUE tO US (2)..evveeereeieeirieereieeeee e 50.0 $ 31.2 $ - $ 81.2
Third party debt (3)......covereieiieiee e 5,340.3 $ 3,948.8 $ 48.1 $ 9,337.2
Total labilities........cccvevviiiiie e 5,647.5 $ 4,773.8 $ 51.6 $ 10472.¢
Noncontrolling INtEreSt.........cccveeeereerieieneesee e 10.7 $ 15.8 $ - $ 26.5
Fund part.ner.s.0..equi.t. Y. 4,041.6 $ 4,017.9 $ 99.1 $ 8,158.6
Our weighted average ownership (4).......cccccovveeriiieenen. 27.6% 28.5% 20.0% 27.9%
Our investment balance (5)......cccoovevveiererireeerie e, 1,010.2 $ 845.1 $ 21.4 $ 1,876.7
Deferred gains, net of amortization (6) 243.1 $ 297.4 $ - $ 540.5

(1) Oneof the North America property fundis a party tanterest rate forward swap contratiiat, beginning in the first quarter of 200@,
longer net the requirements for hedge accounting and, therefore, the chdiagevadue of these contracts was recognizeelarnings,
along with the gain or loss upon settlement. As a result, included in net earnings (loss) from North &m@ertdosses of $6rillion
and $11.9illion for thethree and six months end&dne30, 2010 respectively, and net gains$if4.8 million and net losses $11.6
million for the three and six months endidhe 30, 2009 espectively.Also included in net earnings (loss) in North America is a loss of
$12.4 million for both the three and shonths endedune 30, 201@ue to the impairment on an operating building in one of the property

funds.

(2) As of June 30, 2018nd December 31, 2008¢ had notes receivable aggregating $22.2 million and $22.6 million, respectively, from
ProLogis NorthAmerican Industrial Fund Il and $14.3 million from ProLogis Mexico Industrial Fund for both pefibdsemaining
amounts represent current balances from services provideddyhesproperty fund©n July 23, 2010, we purchased an $81.0 million
loanto ProLogis North American Industrial Fund Il from the lender. The loan bears interest at 8%, matures in April 201 aratlisge

13 buildings in the property fund.

The
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(3) As of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we had not guaranteed any of fhethuldbt of the property funds.eMavepledged
direct owned properties, valued at approximately $275 million, to serve as additional collateral for thensetgeggoan of ProLogis
North American Industrial Fund Il payable to an affiliate of oundfgpartneiand for the related interest rate swap contract

4 Represents our weighted average ownership interesthbeform all propert
depreciation, net of other liabilities.

(5) Thediffeence bet ween our ownership interest of the propertyesfundds eq
of transactions: (i) deferring a portion of the gains we recognize from a contribution of one of our properties to afymdpeeg next
footnote); (ii) recording additional costs associated with our investment in the property fund; and (iii) advances pertyefyond.

(6) This amount is recorded as a reduction to our investment and represents the gains that werevtefewe contributed a property to a
property fund due to our continuing ownership in the property.

Other unconsolidated investees
We have investments in entities that develop and own industrial and retail properties, perform fanedodedevelopnent activity, own a

hotel and own office properties. The amounts we have recognized as our prepeditare of the earninfyem our investments in these
entities are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
NOMH AMETICAL ... .ccviieiiie et ceeee et eemne e $ 2359 % 604 $ 3901 $ 2,588
856 738 1,359 955
133 - 167 -
Total earnings from othe unconsolidated investees $ 3348 $ 1,342 $ 5427 % 3,543

Our investments in and advances to these entities are as follows (in thousands):

June 30, December 31,
2010 2000
Lo g Y 4 1= T oF- PP P UP PP PP RPR ROt $ 146,756 $ 148,137
[0 (o] o= F ST PU T RRPPPPPPRTPN 76,359 96,191
- USRS 57,051 30,745
Total $ 280,166 $ 275,072

5. Discontinued Operations

The operations of the properties held for sale oradisg of to third parties and the aggregate net gains recognized upon their disposition are
presented aBiscontinued Operationis our Consolidated Statements of Operations for all periods presented, unless the property was developed
under a presale agrement. Interest expense is included in discontinued operations only if it is directly attributable to these operations or
properties.

We had no properties classified as held for sale at June 30p2DE@ember 31, 2009.
During the first six months of 20, we disposed & properties to third parties aggregatihg million square feetnone of which were
development propertie®uring all of 2009pther than our China operationge disposed of land subject to ground leasesldfgroperties

aggregatig 14.8 million square feét third parties3 of which were development properties.

Discontinued operations asemmarized as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
RENTAI INCOME. ...ttt bbbttt emenee e i e $ 459 $ 18,038 $ 1,149 $ 45,481
RENLAI EXPENSES. ...ttt (121 (5,101 (430 (13,754
Depreciation and amortization. (11) (4,040 127 (10,502
Other EXPENSES, NEL....ccoiiiiiiie ettt erne et e e e et e e e e sneene - - - (576
Income attributable to diSpoSed ProPerties.........ccuuvveiiiiiireriiieee e 327 8,897 592 20,649
Net gain related to disposed assdBhina operations.............occvveeeeriiieenniieeeennns - - - 3,315
Net gains recognized on property diSPOSItiONS..........c.cciviveiiiieeneeiiiee e, 979 197,213 9,127 197,024
Total discontinued operations $ 1,306 $ 206,11C $ 9,719 $  220,98¢

10
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The following information relates to properties disposed of during the periods presented and edisethtinued operations, excluding th
China operations and including minor adjustments to previous dispositions (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
NUMDET Of PrOPEItIES. ...t e 1 125 9 125

3,753 $ 666,806 $ 17,441$  666,80€
979 $ 197,213 $ 9,127 $ 197,024

Net proceeds from dispositions
Net gains from dispositions

6. Debt

Our debt consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Weighted Weighted
Average Interest Amount Average Interest Amount
Rate Outstanding Rate Outstanding
Credit Facilities ("GlobaLine") 2.42% $ 433,924 2.27% $ 736,591
Senior and other NOLES.........coovviiiiiie i, 6.47 % 4,675,08: 6.31% 4,047,90=
Convertible senior NOtes (1).......ccovveviiiveeiiireeeceiieeeaine 5.02% 1,884,55C 5.55% 2,078,441
Secured mortgage debt...........coooveiiiiiirceniiie i 6.06 % 1,158,808 6.40 % 1,090,12¢
Assessment BoNds..........cooovieiiiiiienicce e 6.47 % 23,813 6.49 % 24,715
Totals 586% $ 8,176,17¢ 575% $ 7,977,77¢

(1) The interest rates presented represent the effective interest rates (including aomdizhe norcash discount related to these not€be
weightedaveragecoupon interest rate w2s5% as of June 30, 2010 and 2.2% as of December 31, 2009

As of June 30, 2010, we were in compliance with all of our debt covenants.

During the three ansix months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, in connection with our announced initiatives to stagger and extend our debt
maturities and reduce debt, we repurchased portions of several series of senior and convertible senior notes outstaatlini¢gjesitn 2012

and 2013. In addition, in the first quarter of 2010 we repaid certain secured mortgage debt in connection with thpreglertfia Japan. The
repurchase activity is summarized as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009

Convertible Senior Notes (1):

Original principal @amouNt............cccceirreiereneie e $ 249,603 $ 473,057 $ 739,642 $ 521,257

Cash purchase price 229,328 $ 313256 $ 694,422 $ 338,077
Senior Notes:

Original principal @moUNt.........ccccvevveiieeiieeerie e $ - $ 343,192 $ 422,47¢ % 343,192

Cash purchase PriCe.........ccvuvverieniiieee e $ - $ 302,090 $ 449382 % 302,09C
Secured Mortgage Debt:

Original principal @amount.............ccccvverveiiieeerecse e $ - $ - % 45140 $ -

Cash repayment PriCe........cccoviviiiiieiienicecieceeee e, $ - % - % 46,659 $ -
Total:

Original principal @mount ...........cccevvveeieriesiereesee e $ 249,603 $ 816,249 $ 1,207,25¢  $ 864,44¢

Cash purchase / repayment priCe..........ccooververvesineernenn, $ 229,328 $ 615,346 $ 1,190,46: $ 640,167

Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt (2) $ 975 $ 143,280 $ (46,658 $ 161,208

(1) Although the cash purchase price is less than the prinaipalret outstanding, the repurchase of these notes resulted ircastolos®f
$15.2 millionin the first quarter of 2010 due to the peash discount.

(2) Represents the difference between the recorded methofpremiums and discoungsdincludingunamortized related debt issuance costs)
and the consideration we paid to retire the dehtch may include prepayment penalties and costs

Global Line

11
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Information related to our Global Line as of June 30, 2010 is as follows (dollars in millions):

Aggregate [eNder COMMITMENTS ... ...ci ittt e et e rmee et b e e e e ettt et e e e e s s benessbeeeaeeababeeeesesssbsenanseeas $ 2,210.1
Less:
BOITOWINGS OUESTANAING. ...cceeiiiiiiii ettt ettt emee et e e e e et et e e e e e me e e bbbt e e e e e sabbeeaeesanbbbnnnseeeeas 433.9
Outstanding letters of credit 98.1
Current availability $ 1,678.1

On June 30, 201@ve amended our Global Line to reduce the sfzb®aggregateommitments tapproximately $2.25 billiosubject to

currency fluctuations by eliminating the Korean won and Canadian dollar tranches and reducing the euro and Japanese yen tranches. In addition
to reducing the commitments, among otherended items, we eliminated the borrowing base covenant and replaced it with a debt yield covenant
that requires us to maintain a ratio of net operating income from certain unencumbered properties to certain specified debt.

We may draw funds from a symdite of banks in U.S. dollars, euros, Japanese yen and British pound sterling and Canadian dollars under the U.S.
tranche. Based on our public debt ratings and a pricing grid, interest on the borrowings under the Global Line acanssatate base

upon the interbank offered rate in each respective jurisdiction in which the borrowings are outstanding (2.42% per aneldd, &010 based

on a weighted average using local currency rates). The facility matures on August 12, 2012.

Senior and OtheNotes

On March 162010, we issued $1.1 billion of senior notmsisting of$300.0 million &46.25% maturing in 2017, at 99.687f par value for
an altin-rate 0f6.318% and $800.0 million &.875% maturing in 2020, at 99.P65%f par value for an alh-rate 0f6.908%. The proceeds were
used to repay borrowings under @iobal Line

2010Convertible Notes

On March 16, 2010, we issued $460.0 million of 3.25% convertible notes maturing it 20250 1 0 C o n v eThe 201D Cenveltildet e s 0 )
Notes ae convertible at any time by holders at an initial conversion rate of 57.8503 shares per $1,000 principal amount ofiveltrg, tecan

initial conversion price of approximately $17.29 per share, subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of cesairhevelders of the notes

have the right to require us to repurchase their notes for cash at any time on or prior to the maturity date upon @chtaoberia termination

of trading (each as defined in the noteB)ie to the terms of the 201®Avertible Notes, including that a conversion must be settled in common
shares, the accounting for these notes is different than our previously issued convertible notes discussed below. Tiver2i0kdXoaies are
reflected at the issuance amount andrigst is recognized based on the stated coupon rate and the amortization of the cash discount. The
conversion of these notes into shares, and the corresponding adjustment to interest expense, are included in our cbdijptatiearnings

per shareunless the impact is ardilutive. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2010, the impact of theseasatgsdilutive.

2007 and 200&onvertible Notes

We also issued three series of convertible senior notes in 2007 and 2008 and mefactdléctivelyas 2007 and 2008 Convertible Notes. The
2007 and 2008 Convertible Notes have different terms and, therefore, different acctiamtitige 2010 Convertible Noteghe value assigned
to the debt componenf the 2007 and 2008 Convertible fdsis the estimated fair value at the date of issuance of a similar bond without the
conversion feature, which results in the debt being recorded at a discount. The resulting debt discount is amortizedtowatatieemaining
life of the debt (the fist cash redemption date in 2012 and 2013) as additionalastminterest expense.

Secured Mortgage Debt

In 2010, we issued three TMK bonds (i) ¥8.1 billion ($86.7 million) at 2.13% due March 2013 (ii) ¥3.4 billion ($36.7 wmuilB2§% due April
2015 and (iii) ¥300 million ($3.3 million) at 2.19% due June 2013 on three properties with an aggregated undeprecia&b6oktoiflion at
June 30, 2010. TMK bonds are a financing vehicle in Japan for special purpose companies known as TMKs.

Long Tem Debt Maturities

Principal payments due on our debt, excluding the Global Line, for the remainder of 2010 and for each of the yearsyedhesiiod ending
December 31, 201&nd thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

12
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201 O I ) TSP PRAROUPPRPPPRN $ 198,86C
b0 ) O TSP PP PR OPPPRPPPRN 169,364
b0 7 TSP PP PR OPPPRPPPRN 1,024,891
2013 (2) (3).... 915,481
0 PO P PSPPSR 513,671
b0 T RSP RTPR 1,049,53(
Bl 4 (CT =T i 1= SO PO PU RS PPTRRTPPRPOt 3,966,162

TOtAl PrINCIPAI GUE ...ttt eeee e st s et e e bbb e e s b e s emm e be e e s b e e e sabeeeasnees 7,837,95¢

[T o ([Tt 1F o] A 7] A PP PUPPT PPN 95,705
Net carrying balance $ 7,742,254

(1) We expect to repay the amounts maturing in 2010 and 2011 with borrowings under our Global Line or with procesdefisates dne
issuance of debt or equity securities, depending on market conditions.

(2) The maturities in 2012ral 2013 include the aggregate principal amoohthe 2007 and 2008 Convertible Notes of $823.0 million and
$703.9million, respectively, based on the year in which the holders first have the right to require us to repurchase tfugicashes

(3) The convertible notes issued in November 2007 are included as 2013 maturities since the holders have the right to rezpirehest®

their notes for cash in January 2013. The holders of these notes also have the option to convert their notes m2Rb2embieh we

may settle in cash or common shares, at our option.
7. Long-Term Compensation
Our longterm incentive plans provide for grants of share options, stock appreciation rights, full value awards and cash inaeistive awa
employes and other persons, including outsitle a r d o f rlisteass)The flbvalue Avards include restricted share (nilsR SUs 0 )
contingent performance shares and performance share awards (APSAso0).
Summary of Activity

The activity for the six monthasnded June 30, 2010, with respect to our share options, is as follows.

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average

Number of Options Exercise Price Options Exercisable
Balance at December 31, 2009..........ccccovieiiiicece e 6,038,70C $ 32.25
Forfeited. ... (136,313 36.85
Balance at June 30, 2010 5,902,387 $ 32.14 4,627,052

OnJuly 9,2010, we completed a ottiene share option exchange program, which was approved by our shareholders at our annual meeting, to
allow certain of our employsedo surrender for cancellation outstanding share options with an exercise price that is greater than our current share
price in exchange for a lesser number of RSUs based on the fair value of the option and the RSU at the time of thd beahzgeized

cost of the share options surrendered and cancelled will be included as a component of the value of the RSUs graatedlUéefttte

RSUs, equal to the unamortized compensation expense associated with the related eligible unvested eptiensdsyius incremental cost, if

any, will be recognized as compensation expense over the applicable vesting period of the new RSUs, generally twigdansvélse of

each RSU granted approximated the fair value of the eligible options sureendexehange for the RSUs, each measured on July 9, 2010, there
was no incremental cost. As a result of the program, 1.8 million options were surrendered and cancelled and 522,328 iRSiéswer

The activity for the six months ended June 30, 201fh keispect to our full value awards, is as follows:

Number of Weighted Average Number of
Shares Original Value Shares Vested
Balance at December 31, 2009..........ccceeveieeeiiiceciiiireeenns 3,401,784
Granted.........oooeiiiiiiiiiirieees e e e e e 1,652,37¢
Distributed..........ocveiiiiii e (234942
FOrfeited. ... ..o (108,560
Balance at June 30, 2010 4,710,661  $ 17.19 187,733

In 2010, we grantel,039,850 RSUs and 543,0P5As The PSAs were grantéd certain employees of the compawgst over three years and
will be earned based on the attainment of certain individual and company goals for 2010. The ultimate numbeitio&sheny be earned and
issued varies froM 1 200% of thetargetaward.Additionally in May 2010, we issued 69,504 deferred units to oust€as in an annual grant.

8. Income Taxes

13



PROLOGIS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Unaudited)

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2010, we recognized a deferred int@mefiteof approximately $27billion resulting from
the conversion of two of our European management comp@aniasable entities. This conversion was approved by the applicable tax authorities
in June 2010 and created an asset for tax purposes thiae wiflized againduture taxable income as it is amortized.

9. Earnings Per Common Share
We deermine basic earnings per share based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the perioel. We compu
diluted earnings per share based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding combined with the inigieetntal we

average effect from all outstanding potentially dilutive instruments.

The following table sets forth the computation of our basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except peuistsare am

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 (1) 2009 2010 (1) 2009
Net earnings (loss) attributable to common shares..............cccocveennnnn $ (23,150 $ 238,865 $ (114,279 $ 417,597
Noncontrolling interest attributable to convertible limited
Partnership UNItS (2).......coooviiiiiiiiicierice e . - 494 - 804
Adjusted net earnings (loss) attributable to common shares.................. .$ (23,150 $ 239,35¢ $ (114,279 $ 418,401
Weighted average common shares outstandBasic.............ccccvevvneeiin, . 476,791 406,538 475,89€ 342,182
Incremental weighted average effect of conversion of limited
PartNership UNItS (2).......ccooviiiiiiiiiciericecc e . - 1,235 - 1,235
Incremental weighted average effef share awards (3)...........cccevvveeennneee . - 1,730 - 1,688
Weighted average common shares outstandingDiluted (4).................... . 476,791 409,504 475,898 345,10€
Net earnings (loss) per share attributable teommon shares
= BASIC. ettt $ (0.05 $ 0.59 $ 0.24 $ 1.22
Net earnings (loss) per share attributable to common shares
- Diluted $ (0.05 $ 0.58 $ 024 $ 1.21

(1) In peaiods with a net loss, the inclusion of any incremental shares idiauriive, and therefore, both basic and diluted shares are the same.
(2) Ifthe impact of limited partnership units is adtiutive, the income and shares are not included in théedilper share calculation.

(3) Total weighted average potentially dilutive share awards outstanding (in thousand$} 88&and 2,14 7for the three months ended
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiyalyd 11,213 and 12,101 for the six months ended 32010 and 2009, respective®f the
potentially dilutive instrumentsll were antidilutive in 2010 and 8,252 and 8,699 were -liltitive for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2009, respectively

(4) The shares underlying the convertible dedve not been included because the impact would beliartive.
10. Financial Instruments
Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, our operations are exposed to global market risks, including the effecsahdbegiga currency exchange

rates and interest rates. To manage these risks, we may enter into various derivative contracts. Foreign currendgctodinactsywards and
options, may be used to manage foreign currency exposure. We may useratiesaps to manage the effect of interest rate fluctuations. We
do not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The majority of our derivative financial instrumestsrareecLderivative
transactions and are not exchaigeled Management reviews our hedging program, derivative positions, and overall risk management strategy
on a regular basi§Ve only enter into transactions that we believe will be highly effective at offsetting the underlying risk.

Our use of derivatives do@svolve the risk that counterparties may default on a derivative contkécestablish exposure limits for each
counterparty to minimize this risk and provide counterparty diversificaiobstantially all of our derivative exposures are with counterpartie

that have longerm credit ratings of singld or better.We enter into master agreements with counterparties that generally allow for netting of
certain exposures; therefore, the actual loss we would recognize if all counterparties failed to perdotracted would be significantly lower.

To mitigate presettlement risk, minimum credit standards become more stringent as the duration of the derivative financial instrureest increa
To minimize the concentration of credit risk, we enter into derieatiansactions with a portfolio of financial institutions. Based on these factors,
we consider the risk of counterparty default to be minimal.

All derivatives are recognized at fair value in our Consolidated Balance Sheets within the lin@themassts or Accounts Payable and

Accrued Expenseas applicable. We do not net our derivative position by counterparty for purposes of balance sheet presentationuaad disclos
The accounting for gains and losses that result from changes in the fair valeesative instruments depends on whether the derivatives are
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designated as, and qualify as, hedging instruments. Derivatives can be designated as fair value hedges, cash flovedhgelyes meth
investments in foreign operations.

Changes in the favalue of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recAotednmated Other Comprehensive
Income (Lossin our Consolidated Balance Sheat¢e reclassify changes in the fair value of derivatives into the applicable fméenitur
Consolidated Statements of Operations in which the hetieyad are recorded in the same period that the underlying hedged items affect
earnings. Due to the high degree of effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the underlyingheggediréiactuations in the value
of the derivative instruments will generally be offset by changes in the fair values or cash flows of the underlyingsdginguredged. The
changes in fair values of derivatives that were not designated and/or digatitt as hedging instrumerase immediately recognized in
earnings.

For derivatives that will be accounted for as hedging instruments in accordance with the accounting standards, we saynzatyatel

document, at inception, the financial instemhas a hedge of a specific underlying exposure, the risk management objective and the strategy for
undertaking the hedge transaction. In addition, we formally assess both at inception and at least quarterly thereaftérewdestvativessed

in hedying transactions are effective at offsetting changes in either the fair values or cash flows of the related underlyneg.edpps

ineffective portion of a derivative financial instrument's change in fair value is immediately recognized in eBanimgves not designated as
hedges are not speculative and are used to manage our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations but do not meetltfecasicictifiéng
requirements.

Our interest rate risk management strategy is to limit the impact oéfinierest rate changes on earnings and cash flows. To achieve this
objective, we primarily borrow on a fixed rate basis for lortgem debt issuances. The maximum length of time that we hedge our exposure to
future cash flows is typically less than 1€ays We use cash flow hedges to minimize the variability in cash flows of assets or liabilities or
forecasted transactions caused by fluctuations in interest\geypically designate our interest rate swap agreements as cash flow hedges as
these desxiative instruments may be used to manage the interest rate risk on potential future debt issuances or to fix theeinteeesarable

rate debt issuance. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a compoaemilaied Other Comprehensive
Income (Lossin our Consolidated Balance Sheets, and reclassdiederest Expensi the Consolidated Statements of Operatiorer the
corresponding period of the hedged item. Losses on the derivative representing Héslgevemess are recognizedlimerest Expensat the

time the ineffectiveness occurred.

There was no ineffectiveness recorded during the imdesix months ended June 30, 2010 and 200@ amount reclassified to interest
expense for the threndsix months ended June 30, 2010 and 280t considered material.

We generally do not designate the following derivative contracts as hedges:

e  Foreign currency forwardswe may use foreign currency forward contracts to manage the foreign curremggtfares of intercompany
loans notdeemedtobealenger m i nvest ment and certain transactions denominated
currency. These contracts are markedharket through earnings, as they are not designated geshéthe gains or losses resulting from
these derivative instruments are include@daneign Currency Exchange Gains (Losses),iNe@ur Consolidated Statements of Operations.
For contracts associated with intercompany loans, the impact on earningeralgaffset by the remeasurement gains and losses
recognized on the related intercompany loans. We had no outstanding foreign currency forwards at June 30, 2010.

. Foreign currency put optiofiswe may use foreign currency put option contracts to mamaggh currency exchange rate risk associated
with the projected net operating income of our foreign consolidated subsidiaries and unconsolidated investees. Thesreonarked
to-market through earnings Foreign Currency Exchange Gains (Loss&&), in our Consolidated Statements of Operatiamthey do
not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. We hadgtivity in foreign currency put optiorduring the six months ended June 30, 2010
and 2009

The following table summarizes the activitydar derivative instruments (in million&)r the six months endelline 30

2010 2009

Foreign Foreign

Currency Interest Currency Interest

Forwards Rate Swaps (1)  Forwards (2) Rate Swaps (1)
Notional amounts at Janyal .............cccevcveenirieeenciecennnen. $ -3 157.7 $ -$ -
NEW CONEIACES......coiiiiiiiiiie e - - 351.7 44.6
Matured or expired CONractS.........ccocvevrrieeiieneiieniee e, - (44.6 (351.7 -
Notional amounts at June 30 $ - $ 113.1 $ -$ 44.6

(1) During the second and fourth quarters of 2009, we entered into two interest rate swap contracts to fix the interest vaiéabteaate
TMK bonds, ¥4.3 billion interest rate swap contract that was settled in the first quarter of 2010 .&rlil¥on interest rate swap contract
that matures in December 2012. We designated these contracts as cash flow hedges and they qualify for hedge accoemitidg treatm
June 30, 2010, we had $0.7 million accruedasounts Payable and Accrued Experiseour Consolidated Balance Sheets relating to the
unsettled derivative.
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(2) During 2009, we entered into and settled forward contracts to buy yen to manage the foreign currency fluctuationstrelatde &6 our
investments in the Japan properyds and recognized losses of $5.7 milliofraneign Currency Exchange Gains (Losses),iNeur
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We have estimated the fair value of our financial instruments using availabfet information and valuation methodologies we believe to be
appropriate for these purposes. Considerable judgment and a high degree of subjectivity are involved in developingdhesaredti
accordingly, they are not necessarily indicative of ant® that we would realize upon disposition.

The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which are described below:

. Level 1i Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity has the ability to access.

. Level 27 Observable inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities
in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; outstiteatigpe
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

e Level 37 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the
assets and liabilities. This includes certain pgaimodels, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use
significant unobservable inputs.

At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the carrying amounts of certain of our financial instruments, including casbqainhtEsk,
accouns and notes receivable and accounts payable and accrued expenses were representative of their fair values dutetonthatsiemf
these instruments, the recent acquisition of these items or, in the case of notes receivable, adjustmentsetonfaditevial connection with
impairment charges.

At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the fair value of our senior notes and convertible notes, have been estinatadjbased market

prices for the same (Level 1) or similar (Level 2) issues wherit quoted market prices are available, the fair value of our credit facilities have
been estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates and borrowing spreads currently available to us (Hetel fa)r aalue of

our secured mortgage liteand assessment bonds that do not have current quoted market prices available have been estimated by discounting the
future cash flows using rates currently available to us for debt with similar terms and maturities (Level 3). The fafiioualderiative

financial instrumentss determined through widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash
flows of each derivative (Level 2). The differences in the fair value of our debt from the carrying \thlei¢aible below are the result of

differences in interest rates and/or borrowing spreads that were available to us at June 30, 2010 and December 3dmp@0&d agth those

in effect whenhtie debt was issued or acquired. The senior notes and mtrgyisues of secured mortgage debt contaipayeent penalties

or yield maintenance provisions that could make the cost of refinancing the debt at lower rates exceed the benefitlibateriveld from

doing so.

The following table reflects the cging amounts and estimated fair values of our financial instruments (in thousands):

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Debt:

[©110] 7= 1 I X T TN SRR $ 433,924 $ 427,081 $ 736,591 $ 716,993

Senior and other notes.. . 4,675,082 4,616,802 4,047,90% 3,981,971

Convertible SENIOr NOLES..........uuvvvrririreeieieeeeeeeevivarenaenen, 1,884,55( 1,827,10¢€ 2,078,441 2,058,507

Secured mortgageeBt...........coceiiiiiiii e 1,158,80¢ 1,224,36( 1,090,12¢ 1,094,52¢

ASSESSMENE DONAS......ceeiiiiiiiiieeccciieeeire e 23,813 23,731 24,715 24,197
Total debt $ 8,176,17¢ $ 8,119,081 $ 7977,77¢ $ 7,876,194

11. Business Segments
Our business strategy currently includes two operating segments. Our current segments are as follows:

. Direct Ownedd representing the direct losigrm ownership of industrial distribution and retail properties. Each operating property is
considered to benaindividual operating segment having similar economic characteristics that are combined within the reportable segment
based upon geographic location. We own real estate in North America (Canada, Mexico and the United States), Europel@gustria,
the Czech Republic, France, Germany, Hungary, Italy, the Netherlands, Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden and the United
Kingdom) and Asia (Japan and South Korea). Also included in this segment is the development of properties for continued direc
ownerdip, including land held for development and properties currently under development. In atdé&isegmenincludes the land we
own and lease to customers under ground leases

. Investment Managemedt representing the loagerm investment managementmbperty funds and industrial joint ventures and the

properties they own. We recognize our proportionate share of the earnings or losses from our investments in unconsdictstkohgds
and joint ventures operating in North America, Europe and Adieng with the income recognized under the equity method, we include
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fees and incentives earned for services performed on behalf of the unconsolidated investees and interest income eamnced tm adv
unconsolidated investees, if any.

We report the cds associated with our investment management segment for all periods presented in thelliwestement Management
Expensef our Consolidated Statements of Operations. These costs include the direct expenses associated with the asset management of
theproperty funds provided by individuals who are assigned to our investment management segment. In addition, in order to achiev
efficiencies and economies of scale, all of our property management functions are provided by a team of professionalsighecaie

our direct owned segment. These individuals perform the prejeemanagement of the properties we own and the properties we

manage that are owned by the unconsolidated investees. We allocate the costs of our property managementtenmopeiies we

own (reported irRental Expensg¢sind the properties owned by the unconsolidated investees (includeestment Management

Expenseks by using the square feet owned at the beginning of the period by the respective portfolios.

Each irvestment in a property fund or joint venture is considered to be an individual operating segment having similar economic
characteristics that are combined within the reportable segment based upon geographic location. Our operations ineihie investm
manageent segment are in North America (Canada, Mexico and the United States), Europe (Belgium, the Czech Republic, France,
Germany, Hungary, ltaly, the Netherlands, Poland, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom) and Asia (Japan aneafouth K

We o longer have a CDFS business segment and the only activity being reported in the CDFS segment in 2009 is the gauon sale of
investments in the Japan property funds as it is essentially the recognition of gains from this segment that were e&feyteddmership
interests at the time of the contribution.

We present the operations and net gains associated with properties sold to third parties or classified as held fecwaie@sddbperations,
which results in the restatement of prior yeaperating results to exclude the items presented as discontinued operations.

Reconciliations are presented below foreipc h r eport abl e business segmentds reveachue from ex
reportabl e b wetoperatisgincome fgom extetnd sustomers to our ear(ivegbefore income taxes; and (igach reportable

business segmentés assets to our total assets. Our similarimedsuetoper ati ng
make decisions about allocating resources and assessing segment performance. The applicable components of our rexg(loss) earni
before income taxes and total assets are al | occameam assais. leraschataree por t ab |

not directly assignable to a segment, such as certain corporate income and expenses, are reflected as reconcilirfglitemiisg The
reconciliations are presented in thousands:
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:
Direct owned (1):
NOMN AMETICA. ...cuveeiieieeee e $ 191,322 $ 199,812 $ 384,147 $ 394,878
BUFORB .. 20,637 15,742 39,564 30,892
AASIB e e 20,465 11,151 40,017 19,788
Total direct owned SEgMENL.........cceeeiveeeririere e, 232,424 226,70E 463,728 445,558
Investment management (2):
NOMN AMETICA. ...cvveeiieireeee e 10,303 25,027 22,988 33,182
EUT O e e e 18,272 19,878 39,697 40,187
ASTL et 559 4,627 971 12,731
Total investment management SEgMEeNt..........ccccoocvvvveeeeeeeenne 29,134 49,532 63,656 86,100
CDFS DUSINESSASIA (3)...uvvieiiiiieiiiieiiieesiieene et - - - 180,237
Total segment revenue... 261,558 276,237 527,384 711,895
ReconCiling iteM (4).......ooiiiiiiiieiiic it (827 (17,758 (6,687 (20,692
Total revenues $ 260,731 $ 258,47¢ $ 520,697 $ 691,203
Net operating income:
Direct owned (5):
NOIth AMEIICA. ...ttt $ 136,74t $ 141,652 $ 274,285 $ 278,20€
BUMOPE. ...t 10,566 4,105 18,406 8,472
AASIB et 15,190 7,594 29,270 12,508
Total direct owned SegMENL.........cc.eevveieriiiere e, 162,501 153,352 321,961 299,18€
Investment managemef)(6):
NOMN AMETICA. ...ccuvieieerieeee s eee e 3,688 19,644 9,779 21,857
BUMOPE. ...t 15,119 16,321 32,962 32,911
AASIBL ettt 396 2,748 665 9,937
Total investment managemengaBeNnt........c.occvverieeeriereacnnneenns 19,203 38,713 43,406 64,705
CDFS DUSINESSASIA (3)..uvvieiiiieeiiiieiiieesiieeeee e siee et enens - - - 180,237
Total segment net operating iNCOME...........cceevivieiieenieeennnen. 181,704 192,065 365,367 544,128
Reconciling items:
General and administrative eXpenses..........ccocvvvevvveeeencieeennnen. (38,921 (41,450 (80,927 (89,693
Reduction in WOrkforCe...........coooviiiiiiiiieeee e e - (6,868 - (11,330
Impairment of real estate properties............ccooveeriieeneiiiee e, (367, (84,218 (367 (84,218
Depreciation and amortization eXpense..........ccocveerveriecennreenans (87,476 (76,941 (173,675 (151,391
Earnings from other unconsolidated investees,.net.................... 2,477 982 4,590 2,347
INEEIEST EXPENSE. .. .eiiiiii ittt (118,920 (83,049 (228,899 (175,981
Other income (EXPENSE), NEL........ccueeiiiiiiiiiieeeiiee e (1,370 744 (1,542 3,944
Net gains on dispositions of real estate properties.................... 10,959 7,904 22,766 8,792
Foreign currency exchaa@ains (I0SSes), NeL.........c.cceevveeiiiienne (7,206 (9,025 (3,518 21,512
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt.............cccceeiiieenen. 975 143,28C (46,658 161,208
Total reconCiling itemMS........cooiiiiiiiii e (239,849 (148,641 (508,230 (314810
Earnings (loss) before income taxes $ (58,145 $ 43,424 $ (142,863 $ 229,318
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June 30, December 31,
2010 2009
Assets:
Direct owned:
[N o g g AN g [=Y (o= N OSSR PR OURRURURNY $ 9,164,075 $ 9,241,816
T o] o1 PP PUPR 3,008,01¢ 3,389,61¢
N - TSR 1,955,331 1,932,187
Total direCt OWNEd SEGMENT........iiitiieiiieeiieee ettt eme et e e seeneeee s 14,127,421 14,563,64¢
Investment management:
[N To T AN 4 T= o SRS 993,928 1,027,367
T (o] T USSP P PSUPRN 900,197 956,365
N - TSRS 77,434 52,170
Total investment management SEgMENL............iiiuii et eree e 1,971,56( 2,035,902
TOtal SEGMENT ASSEES.......veiiitiieiiiie et ettt ettt eeee et e e bb e e esb e e sbe e e smeesabeeesanee s, 16,098,981 16,599,551
Reconciling items:
Investments in and advances to other unalitheted INVESIEES.........uvvvveviviiiiieicceciiiireieeeeeeees 138,03C 141,107
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIBNLS..........oiuiiiii et esrne e e e nneeee 25,102 34,362
ACCOUNES FECEIVADLE ... 8,605 1,574
Other assets.................... 127,761 108,821
Total reCONCIHING IEEMIS....cii ittt rere e e e sb e e e s enb e e netaeeeeeannns 299,498 285,864
Total assés $ 16,398,47¢ $ 16,885,41F

(1) Includes rental income of our industrial and retail properties and land subject to ground leases, as well as develogaer=nnamd
other income

(2) Includes investment management fees and incentive retudrsuashare of the earnings or losses recognized under the equity method
from our investments in unconsolidated property funds and certain industrial joint ventures, along with interest eavaedemntadhese
unconsolidated investeasd the 10.5% amnal di vi dend on 041.6 million of preferred

(3) In 2009, includes the recognition of gains previously deferred from CDFS contributions to the Japan property funds.

(4) Amount represents the earnings osksrecognized under the equity method from unconsolidated inyvedtegswith interest earned on
advances to these entities, that we reflecevenues of the investment management segmutate not presented as a component of
Revenuemn our Consolilated Statements of Operations.

(5) Includes rental income less rental expenses ofngluistrialand retail properties and land subject to ground leases, as well as development
management and other income less related expenses

(6) Also includes the dect costs we incur to manage the unconsolidated iregeated the properties they own that are presentedestment
Management Expensisour Consolidated Statements of Operations.

12 Suplemental Cash Flow Information
Non-cash investingnd financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

e We receivedb4.6million of ownership interests in certain unconsolidated investees as a portion of our proceeds from the contribution of
properties to these propgifunds during the six months ended June 30, 2010.

e  We capitalized portions of the total cost of our sizsed compensation awardsp@t7 million and $3.illion to the investment basis of
our real estate or other assets during the six months énde®0, 201@Gnd 2009, respectively.

The amount of interest paid in cash, net of amounts capitalized, for the six months ended June 30, 2010 an§E®8milion and $154.5
million, respectively.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2239, paid for income taxes wass&2million (primarily in Japan related to the sale of our
investments in 2009) and $7.3 million, respectively.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
ProLogis:

Wehave reviewed the accompanying consolidated bal ance s hegehated of
consolidated statements of operations for tieemonth and sixmonth periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the retzdedolidated
statement of equity for thex-monthperiod ended June 30, 201Be related consolidated statementsafprehensive income (loggy the six

month periods endedune 30, 2010 and 2008nd the relatedonsolidatedstatements of cash flowsr the six-monthperiods ended June 30,
2010 and 2009. These consolidated financial statements are the

We conducted our reviews in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversighiritedr&tates). A review of
interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of personshiesjporisiancial and
accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conduatzmidance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial stakemeagsatavhole.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated finannial isfest: to
above for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

ProlLo

respoe

We have previously auditei accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated

balance sheet of ProLogis and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009, and the related consolidated statements of @peraitns, shd e r s 6
and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and in our reportatat2d, R4, we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the informiitn isethe accompanying
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2009, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to theeddredalidat sheet from
which it has been derived.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
August 5, 2010
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ITEM 2. Managementd6s Discussion and AnaflOpesatoss of Financial Condition ar

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related dedes ittefo 1 of
this report and our 2@0Annual Report on Form 1K.

Certain statements contained in this dis-toeking etatkbmewhebdbewi hhthit
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and Se@ibh of the Securigs Act of 1933 and Secti@1E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. Words and phrases such as fAexpectso, fMadtici pahiesveod fir

variations of such words and similar expressions aeadgd to identify such forwaildoking statements, which generally are not historical in

nature. All statements that address operating performance, events or developments that we expect or anticipate Wik detiureinincluding

statements relating rent and occupancy growth, development activity and changes in sales or contribution volume or praiitahitity sales

and contributionseconomic and market conditions in the geographic areas where we operate and the availability of capitagipraxew

property fundg are forwardlooking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks,

uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Although we believe the expectations refEgiddrvardooking statements are

based on reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained and therefore, astaataet®alts may

differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such fordeakihg statements. Many of the factors that may affect outcomes and

results are beyond our ability to contrlbA. Hiogk fRiadtherrs diisrc utshsii sonr eofd
recent annual report on Fort0-K. Allref er ences t o fAwed, Auso and fiouro refer to ProLogis

Management 6s Overview

We are a seladministered and sefhanaged real estate investment trust (AREITO) that ow
primaiily industrial properties, in North America, Europe and Asia (directly and through our unconsolidated investees). Oaribpsimzsily

driven by requirements for modern, whltated inventory space in key global distribution locations. Our focusanoc ust omer s needs h
enabled us to become a leading global provider of industrial distribution properties.

Our current business strategy imb#s two operating segments: direct ownediamestment management. Our direct owned segment represents
the drect longterm ownership of industrial and retail properties. Our investment management segment representtethe itorestment
management of property funds, other unconsolidated investees and the properties they own.

We generateevenues; earningsfO, as defined at thae of Item2; and cash flows through our segments primarily as follows:

. Direct Owned Segme® Our investment strategy in this segment focuses primarily on the ownership and leasing of industrial and retail
properties in key distoution markets. We divide our operating properties inteédc at egor i es, propeecoei es that we ¢
compl et ed devel,alptheimdustrigia pepreattii regs 0pr o p e r and il opefating prapertpéiso per t i es 0)
included n this segment are industrial properties that are currently under development, land available for development andtlémd subjec
ground leases.

We earn rent from our customers, including reimbursements of certain operatingeostallyunder longtem operating leases. We
expect our total revenues from this segment to increase slightly inf2@1@009through increases in occupied square feet predominantly
in our completeddevelopment pperties offset partially with decreases from contributionpifperties we made in 2009 or may make in
2010and lower rents on turnover of spadée anticipate the increases in occupied square feet to come from leases that were signed in
2009, butwherethe space was not occupied until 2010, leading activity i2010.Our completeddevelopment pperties were 71.9%

and 62.% leased at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respeahal§5.8% and 55.2% occupigdlune 30, 2010 and December

31, 2009, respectively

. Investment Management SegméntWe recognizeur proportionate share of the earnings or losses from our investments in
unconsolidated property funds and certain joint ventures that are accounted for under the equity method. In additignjzedees@and
incentives earned for services perfornoedbehalf of these and other entities. We provide services to these entities, which may include
property management, asset management, leasing, acquisition, financing and development services. We may also eafomaemntives
property funds dependingidahe return provided to the fund partners over a specified period.

We no longer have a CDFS business segment and the only activity being reported in the CDFS segment in 2009 is the gfadmion sale
investments in the Japan property funds as it isngisdly the recognition of gains from this segment that weegiouslydeferred due to our
ownership interests at the time of the contribution.

Summary of 2010

Our objectives for 2010 and beyond are to: (i) retain more of our development assets o ongrove the geographic diversification of our
direct owned properties as most of our planned developments are in international markets; (ii) i poetiae ofour investment in land of
$2.6billion at DecembeB1, 200%hrough disposition or del@pment and (jii) continue to focus on staggering and extending our debt
maturities.

We have mde progress on these objectives, as well as completedaathsties as follows

. In March 2010, w issuedive-, seven and teryear senioand convertiblesenior notes for a total of $1.56 billion. We used the proceeds to
repay borrowings on our credit facility (AGlIobal Lineo).

. In the six months ended June 30, 2010remirchased an aggregatebat16hillion original principal amount of our senior andnsertible
seniornoteswith maturities in 2012 and 2013 for $1.8iflion using borrowings under our Global LiriEhese transactions resulted in the
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recognition of anetlossof $45.3million, which represented the difference between the recorded debtéafs1.10 billion (net of
premiums and discountandincluding related debt issue cgstand the cash consideration paid.

e InJune 2010, we amended our Global Line to reduce the size of the aggregate commitments to approximately $2.25 éition (subj

currency fluctuations).

e  We geneated aggregate proceeds of $167ilion from the contribution of one development property to ProLogis North American

Industrial Properties Fundi NA1 Fo) , one devel opment

propett yfiPEPProLOYyi stBEerepbkar

one development property in Japan, and the sale of nine core properties to third parties.

e  We began development &fproperties that aggregated m8lion square feet and utilizedl$1.6million of land that we owned arteeld
for developmentSevenof these propertiearein Europe and werg00%pre-leased Two of thesgropertes aren Japanone of which
was preleased. Subsequent to the start of one of these developments in Europe, we sold the underlying tesjitGtPBEF Il for $34.6
million. We will construct the building on behalf of the property fund for a development fee. In addition, we solddeisitpahird
parties, generating proceeds of $46.9 million. All of these activities allowed us tozeareaggregate of approximately $176 million in

land so far in 2010.

e  Weincreased the leased percentage of our completed development properties from 62.2% at December 31,20@8Jume 30, 2010
The leased percentage of our core portfolio dea@alightly from 90.1% at December 31, 20089®% atJune 30, 2010

e  We acquired 6 properties aggregating 1.0 million square feet with a combined purchase price of $60.4 million.

e  We purchased 15.8 million common units of ProLogis European ProgerfiecREP R® ) 180 . 4

our ownership percentage in the common equity of PEPR to 33.1%.
Results of Operations
Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Summary

million ($109.2 milli

The following table illustrates the net operating income for ehdur segments, along withe reconciling items t&arnings (Loss) from
Continuing Operationsn our Consolidated Statements of Operatiorieem 1 for the six months ended Jung@6llars in thousands):

Percentage
2010 2009 Change
Net operating income direct OWNed SEgMENL...........ccerviieiiiieeneeene e $ 321,961 $ 299,186 7.6%
Net operating incomeg investment management SEgMEeNt...........ccovcvveerieeneerveeenenn 43,406 64,705 (32.9%
Net operating incomie CDFS bUSINESS SEgMENL......ccveiiiiiiiiiiiieeniii e - 180,237 (100.0)%
General and administrative EXPENSE.........c.uiiiiiiiiieeee et emee e (80,927 (89,693 (9.8%
Reduction in WOFKFOICE...........oiiiiiiiiii et - (11,330 (100.0%
Impairment of real estate ProOPerties...........couuuieiieiereaiiie et (367, (84,218 (99.6%
Depreciation and amortiZatiomBENSE. .......c..eeiiiriiiiieeieeee e eemee e (173,675 (151,391 14.7%
Earnings from other unconsolidated investees,.Net............cccoevvveecnnieeiiececnen. 4,590 2,347 95.6%
INtErest EXPENSE.....coviiieiiiieiiie e (228,899 (175,981 30.1%
Other income (expense), net (1,542 3,944 (139.1%
Net gains on dispositions of real estate properties. ..........cocovevvieeeerveeineeennnnn 22,766 8,792 158.9%
Foreign currency exchange gains (10SSeS), MeL.........ccccveiriiierceniieiniieenee e (3,518 21,512 (116.4%
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt.............cccooiiiec (46,658 161,208 (128.9%
Income tax benefit (EXPENSE)........uei it 32,047 (19,167 (267.2%
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ (110,816 $ 210,151 (152.7%

See Note 110 our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for additiaformation regarding our segments and a reconciliation of net

operating income to earnings (loss) before income taxes.

As discussed earlier, we changed our business strategy in late 2008 and discontinued the CDFS business segmentoiiy2@f®sdkton in
this segment is the gain from the sale of our investments in the Japan property funds in February 2009.

Direct Owned Segment

The net operating income of the direct owned segment consists of rental income and rental expenses fronaimtitetaibproperties that we

own. The size andccupiedpercentage of our direct owned operating portfolio fluctuates due to the timing of development and contributions and
affects the net operating income we recognize in this segment. Also includesisegiment is land we own and lease to customers under ground
leases, development management and other income and land holding and acquisition costs. The net operating income¢tarwites dir
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segmenfor the six months ended June 88¢luding amountpresented aBiscontinued Operationis our Consolidated Financial Statemeints
Item 1, was as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009
Rental and Other INCOMIE..........iiieiiiieiteeeie ettt eteee ettt ettt be e eassbesreeneene s $ 463,728 $ 445,55¢
Rental and Other EXPENSES ... ....uuiiii et ree et e e st e e e e b beenasr e e e e eannees 141,767 146,372
Total net operating income- direct owned segment $ 321,961 $ 299,18¢
Our direct owned operating portfolio was as follows (square feet in thousands):
June 30, 2010 December31, 2009 June 30, 2009

Number of Square Leased Number of Square Leased Number of Square Leased

Properties  Feet % Properties  Feet % Properties  Feet %
Core industrial properties (1).......... 1,024 141,561 89.5% 1,025 141,01¢ 90.1% 1,036 142,592 89.7%
Completed development properties. 163 51,153 71.9% 163 50,604 62.2% 175 52,744  49.4%
Subtotal industrial properties 1,187 192,714 84.8% 1,188 191,623 82.7% 1,211 195,337 78.8%

Retail properties.........cccccevvivveeeeiee, 27 1,014 91.7% 27 1,014 91.5% 33 1,355 92.4%
Total operating portfolio 1,214 193,72¢ 84.8% 1,215 192,637 82.8% 1,244 196,692 78.9%

(1) Included at June 3@010 are 6 propertiegggregatind..0 million square feet whickvere acquired in June 2010 and 81.0% leased at June
30, 2010.During the six months ended June 30, 204€ disposed of 9 propertid®m this portfolio aggregating 0.7 million square feet
that were 81.% leased at the time dfsposition. During the six months endidhe 30, 201,Gwo properties aggregating 0.2 million
square feet were added to the portfolio that became available for lease.

(2) Included at June 30, 2010 arprbperties agregatingl.9 million square feet for which development was completed in 2010. During the six
months ended June 30, 201& contributed 3 propertiésom this portfolio that were 100 leased at the time of contributiddne building
and an expansion buildy were combined into one building in 2010.

The ircrease in rental income in 2010 from 2009 is pimwarily to the increased occupanin our completed development properties (from

55.2% atDecember 31, 200® 65.8% atlune 30, 201)) offset partiallypy decreasedue tocontributions of properties to the unconsolidated
property fundsdecreased occupancy in our core propesiesdecreases &ffectiverental rates on turnoverhe effective rental rates in our

same store portfolio (as defined belalecreased 15.7% in the second quarter 2010 as compared with second quarter 2009. The decrease was
due to: (i) leases turning that were put in place when market rents were at a peak; (i) maezraHeases that generally have lower effective

rental mtes; and (iii) decreased market reritsder the terms of our lease agreements, we are able to recover the majority of our rental expenses
from customers. Rental expense recoveries, included in both irergaie and expenses, were $102i8ion and $.00.3 million for the six

months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Investment Management Segment

The net operating income of the investment management segment consisaoiirfiys or losses recognized under the equity method from our
invegments in property funds and certain joint venturesfd@y and incentives earned for services performed; anuhi@iest earned on
advances; offset by (i\gur direct costs of managing these entities and the properties they own.

The net earnings dosses of the unconsolidated investees may include the following income and expense items, in addition to rental income and
rental expenses: (ifterest income and interest expense;d@ipreciation and amortization expenses; @i@heral and administtive expenses;

(iv) income tax expense; (¥Qreign currency exchange gains and lossespgii)s or losses on dispositions of properties or investments; and

(vii) impairment charges. The fluctuations in income we recognize in any given period ardygéreerasult of: (i)variances in the income and
expense items of the unconsolidated investeeghéisize of the portfolio and occupancy levels; @fignges in our ownership interest; and

(iv) fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates at whie translate our share of net earnings to do8ars, if applicable.

We report the costs associated with our investment management segment for all periods prekefitezlitem Investment Management
Expensef our Consolidate&tatements of Opations of $20.3nillion and $21.4million for the six months ended June 30, 260d2009
respectively. These costs include the direct expenses associated with the asset management of the property fulysrmivithieds who are
assigned to our inggment management segment. In addition, in order to achieve efficiencies and economies of scale, all of our property
management functions are provided by a team of professionals who are assigned to our direct owned segment. Thespénfdirriultizds
propertylevel management of the properties we own and the properties we manage that are owned by the unconsolidated investags. We all
the costs of our property management function to the properties we own (rep&twdahExpensg¢snd the properteeowned by the
unconsolidated investees (includedrimestment Management Expersey using the square feet owned at the beginning of the period by the
respective portfoliosThe decrease is due primarily to the sale of our investments in the Jaganvihich were managed until July 2009.

The net operating income from the investment management sefgmtr@ three months ended Junewgd as follows (in thousands):
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2010 2009

Unconsolidated property funds:

North Ameica (1) 7,681 $ 21,045
=0 o] o T 2 F TP URUURPPPPRIIN 32,195 32,526
AASIA (Bt eeeee ettt ettt ettt eaene et n ettt eneee s 455 1,142
OUNEE (4. ettt ettt et et ee st e e eeene e et n et ene st enen st s e een e 3,075 9,992
Total net operating income- investment management segment $ 43,406 $ 64,705

(1) Represents the incomareedby us from our investments in Hdid 12property funddor the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectivelyjn North America offset by investment management expen®es ownership interests ranged from 20.0% to 50.0% at June
30, 2010. Tese property fus on a combined basis owned 799, 847 andp8a2ertieghat were 92.5%, 91.9% and 92.084sedat June
30, 2010 December 31, 200&ndJune 30, 200%espectivelyDuring the fourth quarter of 2009, we recognized an impairment charge tha
represented the entire carrying value of our investments in ProLogis North American Properties Funds IX and X aftetiestsutshat
we may not be able to recover our investment. We do not have any material financial exposure related to entsiretiese property
funds. As a result, we are no longer recognizing our share of the earnings or loss generated by the property fundsamat welbded
these property funds in our disclosures beginning January 1, 20fifig the second quartef 2010ProLogisNorth American Properties
Fund IX conveyed all of its properties to the lender of its secured debt. We incurred no additional loss.

Our proportionate share of earnings from the North American property funds decreased in 2010, ad eoth[20@9, due primarily to
lower revenue as a result of property sales, lower occupancy, lower effective rents on new leases and higher interdgedrpense
refinancing of maturing debt. On a combined basis, excluding ProLogis North American Bsopertils IX and X, the occupied
percentage of this portfolio was 91.4%, 92.3% and 92.5% at June 30, 2010, December 31, 2009 and June 30, 2009. hcladdiiam, i
net operating income for 2010 is a net loss of $3.0 million, which represents ouofsaaienpairment on an operating building in one of
the funds.

(2) Represents the income earned by us from our investments in two property funds in Europe, PEPR andfRREPBylinvestment
management expensé3n a combied basis, these funds ownd®D, 428 and 40propertieghat were 93.9%, 96.3% and 97.0% leased
June 30, 201Mecember 31, 200&8ndJune 30, 200%espectively. The increase in properties is due primarily to contributions we made to
PEPF Il in 20090ffset somewhat by the saleXsf properties by PEPR to a third party during the second and third quarters of 2009.

Our common ownership interest in PEPR and PEPF Il wa&@38rtl 31.86, respectively, at June 30, 20During the first quarter of
2010, we purchased 15.8 milioncoren uni ts of PEPR for 0480.4 million ($109.2 millio
041.6 million of preferred units in PEPR that we acquired in Dece

(3) Represents the income earned by us from our 20% ownership interest moperypfund in South Korea and two property funds in Japan
through February 2009, at which time we sold found investments in Japanffset by investment management expenaedune 30, 2010
December 31, 2008ndJune 30, 200%he Korea fungdwhich ovned 12propertiesfor all periods that were 100%, 97.8% and 97.8% leased,
respectivelywas the onlyfundin which we maintain anvenership interest

(4) Includes property management feesl our share of earnings from certain joint ventures and ottige® offset by investment
management expenses. Include@@@9arefees earned from the Japan property fuafter Februanthrough July2009

See Notel to our Consolidated Financial Statements in liefar additional information on our unconsaliéd investees.
OperationalOutlook

Althoughthe global market fundamentals began to show signs of stabiléte 2009, the industrial real estate business has historically lagged

the overall economyGlobally, demandor industrial distribution spads still soft, but we are seeing signs of increased customer actinity

net absorption in the U.S. for the first time since the third quarter of 2007. We expect demand in the U.S. to impreseDasr®stic Product

(AGDPO) g r.0Webehevesignificant absolescenceandu st omer sdé prefer ence t wildogigustedriver at her t h
demandor industrial spacé Europe and AsiaMarket rents remain lower than a year ago and we expect this to remain the case for the

foreseable future. Howeverye believe market rents will trend upwardnaarket occupanciémprove

In our total operating portfolio, including properties managed by us and owned by our unconsolidated investees thaitatefaccodethe
equity method, w leased 57.9 million square feet and 108illion square feet of space during the first six months of 2010 and the year ended
December 31, 2009, respectively, includ#&3million square feet of leases signed in the first six months of 2009leasdurnovers in the

same store portfolio (as defined below), rental rates decreased 15.7% in the second quarterTofe2@HD operating portfolio was 894

leased at June 30, 201( from 89.2% abecember 31, 20Q%rimarily due to increased leasimgdur completed development properties, offset
by modest decreases in the core and investment management portfolios

In our directowned portfolio, we leased 26million square feet, including 9r@illion square feet of new leases in our developmenfgiart

(both completed properties and those under development) in the six months ended June Bhis2@dipares to the first six months of 2009
when we leased 26.8 million square fé&peat business with our global customers is important to outdomggrowth. During the first six
months of 20100f the space leased in our newly developed propefiledo was with repeat customers. Although leasing activity was slower
on expiring leases during the first six months of 2010, existing customers reti@ivddases #.7% of the timein 2010 as compared with

71.%% for the same period in 2009. As of June 30, 2010, our total direct amthestrialoperating portfolio s 84.8% leased, as compared with
82.7%6 at December 31, 20@Hhd 78.9% at June 30, 2009
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The industry as a whole has had sharply reduced levels of speculative new supply over the past year and a half. Havevaegwe to

experience an increase in customer requests for-tmiddit proposals, since much of theerallexistingindusty vacancy is in older, obsolete

buildings andtherefored o es not meet these customersd distribution spiace requirer
months endedune 30, 2010ne started development @propertes totaling 4.3nillion square feet3 of which were leased prior to the

commencement of development. In an effort to monetize our land holdings, we plan to continue to take advantage ofexppmdewéiop

generally prdeased buildings on our land. We will contineesvaluate future opportunities for such developments directly and also within

unconsolidated investee&dditionally, we have had an increase in customer requests to buy land for new facilities. Some of this land we have

designated to be developed anddhdf we decide to sell this land, we may recognize impairments at that time or gains on the sale, depending on

the value as compared to our carrying value.

In addition, during 2010, &completed the development of 4 buildings aggregatingillidn square feet that were 10@% leasd at June 30,

2010 and contributed @evelgpment properties aggregating Indlion square feet that wet#0.0% leased at contributioAs of June 30, 2010,

we owned 16&omplded development properties that were 71.9% bas® compared to 622leased at December 31, 2009addition, we

had 9 properties under development that were 65.5% leased.June 30, 2010, we expect to incur an additioBaR¥million of development

and leasing costs related to our developrpenitfolio. Our neaterm focus is to complete the development and leasing of these properties. Once
these properties are leased, we may continue to own them directly, thereby creating additional income in our direcnosvriedrsgg may
contribute then to a property fund or sell them to a third party, generating cash to reduce oo fdelother corporate purposes

Other Components of Income
General and Administrative (NG&AO0) Expenses and Reduction in Workfor

Net G&A expenses were $&0million and $89.illion for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and consisted of the
following (in thousands):

2010 2009
GrOSS G&A EXPEINSE ....uveetieteeiteeasteeieneessreessteaseeesseesseessananesseesseeasesssseanseesssennnseesnseesseesseessessneesnns $ 130,733 % 147,160
Reported as rental expense...........c.ccceevvveeueen. . (9,833 (9,787
Reported as investment Management EXPENSE...........uiuiuieieeririeerieieaireeaieeesieeeeeesireesbeeesseeeas (20,250 (21,395
CapitaliZEd AMOUNTS ......oiiiiiiiie ittt b et e e sme et e site e e e b e e e sereesbneas (19,723 (26,285
Net G&A $ 80,927 $ 89,693

Overall G&A expense decreased due to lower gross G&A expense, as a result of our RIF pr@®@8rand various cost savings measures,
offset by lower capitalized G&AOur capitalized G&A has decreasade to lower gross G&A expenseurredand less development activity.

Impairment of Real Estate Properties

During the second quarter of 20@% recorded impairment charges of $84.2 million related primarily to completed development properties in
Europe and Mexico that we expected to contribute to the unconsolidated property funds. These charges representedéheetiiitsrrihe
estimated pceeds from disposition and our cost basis and were due to our intent at that time to contribute these propertiekeSome of t
properties have been contributed with the remainder now being held for long term investment, net of the impairment.

Changes ireconomic and operating conditions and our ultimate investment intent with regard to our investments in land and opeediies) pro
that occur in the future may result in additional impairment charges.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation andraortization expenses were $173rillion and $151.4million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The increase is due to the completion and leasing of properties.

Interest Expense

Interest expensier the six months ended JuneiB6ludes the following components (in thousands):

2010 2009
GrOSS INTEIESE EXPENSE. ..euveeueeeiiesteeetereeesseesseesteeaseeateeseesmansessseasseesseesseesseesssnanenseesseesseesseenseeans $ 218,234 3% 190,237
Amortization of iSCOUNE, NEL...........coiiiiiiiii e e e 27,532 35,343
Amortization of deferred 108N COSES..........cociiiiiiiiiii e e, 13,917 6,249
Interest expnse before capitaliZatiQn.............cuueiiiiiiieii e 259,683 231,82¢
CapitaliZEd @MOUNTS .....coiiiiiii ittt et e et e et eme et e e e e s nbneesbe e e e (30,784 (55,848
Net interest expense $ 228,898 $ 175,981

The ircrease in interest expense in 2010 over 2009 is duereased borrowing rates almver a@pitalization due to less development activity
in 2010.0ur weighted average interest rate was 5.86% and 5.28% at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respactivilye interest expense, both
gross and the portion capitalized, will vary depending on, amongtbihgs, the level of our development activities.

Net Gains on Dispositions of Real Estate Properties
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During the six months ended June 30, 2010, we recognized net gains of $22.8 gelierated fronthe contribution of land and operating
properties $19.1 million gain) and the sale of land pardelthird partieg$3.7 million gain).

The contribution activity resulted in cash proceeds of $150.1 million related tmntribution obne development property aggregating 0.6

million square feet to Bt.ogis European Properties Fund Il, the sale of 90% of one development property in Japan with 0.5 million square feet

andthe contribution obne development property aggregatingmillion square feet to ProLogis North American Industrial Properties .Rtvied

continue to own 10% of the Japan property, which is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, and we ccatiage tioem
property.

We also received cash proceeds of $34.6 million related to the contribution of 41 acres of landdis Falopean Properties Fundb which
we will develop a 0.8 million square foot building on behalf of the property fund and earn development fees.

During the first quarter of 2010, we received proceeds of $13.2 million, which rege$ieatdevelopnm costs wencurred relating to the sale

of a building in Japan to a third party. As we have a purchase option on this building, we recorded a liability foréoeivashand did not
recognize a sale for accounting purposes.

If we realize a gain onontribution of a property, we recognize the portion attributable to the third party ownership in the gnopeperty
fund until the property is sold to a third parue to our continuing involvement through our ownership in the property or thertyrfymd
acquiring the property, these dispositions are not included in discontinued operations.

Foreign Currency Exchange Gaifisosses)net

We and certain of our foreign consolidated subsidiaries have intercompany or third party debtthatsnotderat ed i n t he
currency. When the debt is remeasured against the functional currency of the entity, a gain or loss may result. Tomfiiigage ourrency
exchange exposure, we borrow in the functional currency of the borrowiihgweinen appropriate. Certain of our intercompany debt is
remeasured with the resulting adjustment recognized as a cumulative translation adjustoregrinCurrency Translation Losses, Nebur
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (LBsis)treatment is applicable to intercompany debt that is deemed to betonin
nature.

If the intercompany debt is deemed shertn in nature, when the debt is remeasured, we recognize a gain or loss in eafaireggnized net

foreigncurrencyexchange losses of $4ndllion andgains of $43.9nillion during the first six months &010 and2009 respectivelyrelated to
the remeasurement of debt. Predominantlygéiasrecognized in earnings relate to the remeasurement of intercompanydbaasrbthe

U.S.parent and certain consolidated subsidiaries in Japan and Europe and result from fluctuations in the exchange rdté#aaf td.8e yen,

euro and pound sterling. In addition, we recognized net forigrency exchange gains of $0xfllion and losses of $22 aillion from the
settlement of transactions with third parties in the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Gains (Loss) on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009nimection with our initiativeto reduce debt and stagg#ebt maturities, we purchased

portions of several series of notes outstanding and extinguished some secured mortgage debt prior to maturity, whintthesattegnition

entityos

of losses of $46.willion in 2010 and gains of $161ndllion in 2009. The gains or losses represent the difference between the recordeétdebt

of premiums and discounts aimtluding related debt issuance cdstsd the consideration we paid to retire the debt. See\oteur
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1.

Income Tax Expense

During the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, our curremigniar expense was $10.4 million and $34ilion, respectively. We

recognize current income tax expense for inctames incurred by our taxable REIT subsidiaries and in certain foreign jurisdictions, as well as

certain state taxes. We also include in current income tax expense the interest associatediaditityofar uncertain tax position®ur current
incometax expense fluctuates from period to period based primarily on the timing of our taxable income and changes in t@stratestdn

the first quarter of 2009, in connection with the sale of our investments in the Japan property funds, we rexogmtiedometax expense of

$20.5million.

In 2010and 2009 we recognized net deferred tax benefit of $42ndllion and $.5.6million, respectivelyDeferred income tax expense is

generally a function of t he lipaton of oeddperatirig éossesgenaratey in griorfydars thathadlbeen and t he

previously recognized as deferred income tax assets in certain of our taxable subsidiaries operating iortimefafeSgn jurisdictionsin

addition, duringhe three and six mdms ended June 30, 2010, we recognized a deferred income tax benefit of approximately $27.5 million

resulting from the conversion of two of our European management companies to taxable entities. This conversion wasyatherapgtidable

tax authoritiesn June 2010 and created an asset for tax purposes that will be utilized against future taxable income as it is amortized.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations represent a component of an entity that has either been disposed of dedsaddssifl for sale if both the operations
and cash flows of the component have been or will be eliminated from ongoing operations of the entity as a resultasahteagispction and

the entity will not have any significant continuing involvementhia operations of the component after the disposal transaction. The results of

operations of the component of the entity that has been classified as discontinued operations are reported sepa@ueboiidated Fiancial
Statementsn Item 1
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In 2010, we disposed of Bropertiesa third parties aggregating On7illion square feet. The net gains on dispositof these properties of $9.1
million are reflected in discontinued operations, along with the results of operations of these propertipsrfodsipresented.

In February 2009, we sold our operations in China. Accordingly, we have included the gain on sale of $3.3 million arits thieo@sChina
operations in discontinued operatioan2009

During all of 2009, in addition to our @fa operations, we disposed of lssubject to ground leases and POperties to third parties that met
the requirements to be classified as discontinued operations. Therefore, the results of operations for these dispesedrprioparted in
discantinued operationfor all periods presented, along with the gains recognized during the.pafeéddad no properties classified as held for
sale at June 30, 2010 or December 31, 2009.

See Note2 and5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1.

Other Comprehensive Income (Losdjoreign Currency Translation (Losses), Net

For our consolidated subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, we translate their financial statietdeditslollars at the

time we consolidatethoseu bsi di ari esd® financial statements. Generally, assets

balance sheet date. The resulting translation adjustments, due to the fluctuations in exchange rates from the begipeiiog ¢6 the end of
the period, are included in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).

During the six months ended June 30, 2848 2009, we recognized losse®ther Compehensive Income (Loss) of $409rfllion and $67.2
million, respectivelyrelated to déreign currency translations of our international business units into U.S. dgitarsconsolidation. In 2010,

these losseare mainly the resutif the strengthening of the U.S. dollar to the euro and pound sterling, offset by the yen strengthershthagain
U.S. dollar, from the beginning to the end of the period, principally in the three months ended June. 30 22080werecognized net losses
due to the sale of our China operations and investments in the Japan property funds, which bothlateeduamslation gains at the time of
sale, and thetrengthening U.S. dollar to the epaffset somewhat by the strengthening of the pound sterling to the U.S. floitathe
beginningto the end of the period.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2010 aB@

The changes in net earnings attributable to common shares and its components for the three months ended June 30 2040 tasteom
three months ended June 30, 2009, are similar to the changes for the six month periods ended on the srreptiaseseparately discussed
above.

Portfolio Information

Our total operating portfolio of properties includes industrial and retail properties owned by us and industrial propextiés/dhe property

funds and joint ventures we manage and accaurdrf the equity method. The operating portfolio does not include properties under
development, properties held for sale or any other properties owned by unconsolidated investees, and was as folloeet {(sgharsands):

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009 June 30, 2009
Number of Number of Number of
Reportable Business Segment Properties  Square Fee: Properties Square Fee Properties Square Fee
Direct Owned.................. 1,214 193,728 1,215 192,637 1,244 196,692
Investment Management................ccvvveeenee. 1,245 269,67E 1,289 274,617 1,278 272,207
Totals 2,459 463,403 2,504 467,254 2,522 468,89¢

Same Store Analysis

and

We evaluate the performance of the operating properties we ownand manageg a fAsame storedo analysis because

in this analysis is consistent from period to period, thereby eliminating the effects of changes in the compositiontfafithepperformance
measures. We include properties owned &iyamd properties owned by the unconsolidated investees (accounted for on the equity method) that
are managed by wus (referred to as funconsolidated itfolio, forsthethrees 0 ) ,
months enda June 30, 201Gs those properties that were in operatiofpail 1, 2009, and have been in operation throughout the-thosgh

periods in both 2010 and 2009, including completed development properties. We have removed all properties that werd tlisptsed!

party or were classified as held for sale from the population for both periods. We believe the factors that impacbreefakimal expenses

and net operating income in the same store portfolio are generally the same as for theftdial foorder to derive an appropriate measure of
periodto-period operating performance, we remove the effects of foreign currency exchange rate movements by using the curreratexchange
to translate from local currency into Udllars, for bottperiods. The same store portfolio, for the three montbe@ June 30, 2010, included
2,413properties that aggregat 447.1Imillion square feet.

The following is a reconciliation of our consolidated rental income, rental expenses and net operatin¢ciacatated as rental income less

rental expensesdr the three months ended June 30, 2810 2009as included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations irl|tethe
respective amounts in our same store portfolio analysis.
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Percentage

2010 2009 Change
Rental Income (1)(2)
Consolidated:
Rental income per our Consolidated Statements of Operations.............ccccocoeeeieiiieeennee. $ 229,79C$ 224,882
Adjustments to deriveame store results:
Rental income of properties not in the same store porfoljzroperties
developed and acquired during the period and land subject to ground.leases.......... (22,394 (18,661
Effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and.other............cccccoovevnieeinn. 522 (495,
Unconsolidated investees:
Rental income of properties managed by us and owned by our unconsolidated
INMVESTEES. ...ttt ettt s 363,963 370,966
Same store portfoliod rental income (2)(3) 571,881 576,692 0.83%
Less completed development Properti€s.(4).......couvie e iieeee et (48,431 (34,267
Adjusted same store portfolioi rental income (2)(3)(4) $ 523,45C$ 542,425 (3.50%
Percentage
2010 2009 Change
Rental Expenses (1)(5)
Consolidated:
Rental expenses peur Consolidated Statements of Operations.............cccccvvevemniieiiineen. $ 65274% 68,884
Adjustments to derive same store results:
Rental expenses of properties not in the same store podfatimperties
developed and acquired during the period and land subject to ground.leases.......... (5,619 (6,351
Effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and.other.............cccooceeeeeenen. 4,553 2,175
Unconsolidated investees:
Rental expenses of properties managed by us and owned by our unconsolidated
LN LEES (1T OO P PO POPPPPPPRRY 88,550 78,310
Same store portfoliod rental expenses (3)(5) 152,758 143,018 6.81%
Less completedevelopment Properties (4. ...cvueeeeeiiiieiiee e esiieee e e ee e (16,034 (14,774
Adjusted same store portfolioi rental expenses (3)(4)(5) $ 136,724 $ 128,244 6.61%
Percentage
2010 2009 Change
Net Operating Income (1)
Consolidated:
Net operating income per our Consolidated Statements of Operations.................ccceeu.... $ 164516 $ 155,998
Adjustments to derive same store results:
Net operating income of properties not in the same store pordfoficoperties
developed and acquired during the period and land subject to ground.leases......... (16,775 (12,310
Effect of chages in foreign currency exchange rates and other.............cccccovcvnienin (4,031 (2,670
Unconsolidated investees:
Net operating income of properties managed by us and owned by our
UNCONSOIAALEA INVESTEES. ... ..civviiiiiiiieiireeeeere et enme e e 275,413 292,656
Same store portfoliod net operating income (3) 419,123 433,674 (3.36%
Less completed development Properti€S. (4).......ueu e ureeiee e iiieee et e e ee e e (32,397 (19,493
Adjusted same store portfolioi net operating income (3§4) $ 386,726 $ 414,181 (6.63%

(1) As discussedkmove, our same store portfolio inclwdiedustrial and retail properties from our consolidated portfolio and industrial
properties owned by the unconsolidated investees (accounted for omitiyerezthod) that are managed by us. During the periods
presented, certain properties owned by us were contributed to a property fund and are included in the same store porigpicegate

basis. Neither our consolidated results nor that of the sotidated investees, when viewed individually, would be comparable on a same

store basis due to the changes in composition of the respective portfolios from period to period (for example, theresnttéhated
property would be included in our cotisated results through the contribution date and in the results of the unconsolidated investee
subsequent to the contribution date).

(2) We exclude the net termination and renegotiation fees from our same store rental income to allow us to evaatie thelgcline in
each propertyds rental

termination and renegotiation fees represent the gross fee negotiated to allow a customer to ¢emainegietiate their lease, offset by the

ncome
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write-off of the asset recognized due to the adjustment to stifightents over the lease term. The adjustments to remove these items are

included as feffect of changelernd fmrtehgnt ahulreenazlyovax.change rates

(3) These amounts include rental income, rental expenses and net operating income of both our consolidated industript@pertiesand
those industrial properties owned by our unconsolidated investees (accountechioeaiity method) and managed by us.

(4) The same store portfolio results include the benefit of leasing our completed development properties that meet ouofitfengaome
store portfolio. We have also presented the results for the adjusted sanpesfolie by excluding the 156 completed development
properties that we owned as of April 1, 2009 and that are still included in the same store portfolio (either ownedlyunsansolidated
investees that we manage).

(5) Rental expenses in the samastportfolio include the direct operating expenses of the property such as property taxes, insurance, utilities,
etc. In addition, we include an allocation of the property management expenses for owavdietproperties based on the property
managemerfee that is provided for in the individual management agreements under which our wholly owned management companies
provides property management services to each property (generally, the fee is based on a percentage of revenues)atn cesolid
mangement fee income earned by the management company and the management fee expense recognized by the properties are eliminated
and the actual costs of providing property management services are recognized as part of our consolidated rental eseezsessds
fluctuate based on the | evel of properties i ncl udohahgesimforeigne s a me
currency exchange rates and othero in the above table.

Environmental Matters

A majority of the properés acquired by us were subjected to environmental reviews either by us or the previous owners. While some of these

assessments have led to further investigation and sampling, none of the environmental assessments have revealed aaldiabiidyrine

we believe would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We record a liability for the estimated costs of environmental remediation to be incurred in connection with certaig ppepatiies &

acquire, as well as certain land parcels we acquire in connection with the planned development of the land. Thedgbilitghied to cover the

environmental remediation costs, including cleanup costs, consulting fees for studies and investigatitoring costs and legal costs relating

to cleanup, litigation defense, and the pursuit of responsible third parties. We purchase various environmental instiesnmerpitigate our

exposure to environmental liabilities. We are not aware of aviyggmental liability that we believe would have a material adverse effect on our

business, financial condition or results of operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

We consider our ability to generate cash from operating activitiesjlmaians and dispositions of properties and from availibéncing
sources to be adequate to meet our anticipated future development, acquisition, operating, debt serviceothet shistréution requirements.

During 2010, we continued to focus daggering and extending our debt maturities through the following activities:
e In March 201Q0we issued $1.56 billion of senior debt, consisting of:
- $800 million with a stated rate of 6.875% and a maturity of March 2020;
- $300 million with a stated ratd 6.25% and a maturity of March 2017; and
- $460 million of convertible notes with a stated rate of 3.25% and a maturity of March 2015.
The proceeds were used to repay borrowings on our Global Line, including amounts used to repurchase debt as iiscussed be

e We completed a tender offer for our 5.5% senior notes due April 1, 2012 and March 1, 2013. We repurchased $422.%jimélion ori
principal amount for $449.4 million.

e  We repurchased $739.6 million original principal amount of the convertible @ebad/issued in 2007 and 2008, with the first cash put
dates in 2012 and 2013, respectively, for $694.4 million.

e  We generated proceeds of $27.4 million from the issuance of 2.2 million common shares une#reaurgiet equity issuance program,
which is net of $0.6 million of costs paid to our sales agent.

e  Weissued ¥11.8 billion ($126.7 million) in secured mortgage debt related to certain of our Japan properties.
e  We amended our Global Line, reducing the aggregate lender commitments to approxighatehilfon.

See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for more information on our debt.
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NearTerm Principal Cash Sources and Uses

In addition to common share distributions and preferred share dividend requirements, we expenaoushort and longermcash neesiwill
consist of the following

e  completion of the development and leasing of the properties in our development paijfolio (
e  selective development of new operating properties, that are generaidapeel, for longerm investment;
e repayment of debt, including payments on @Global Lineor opportunistigepurchasesf convertible, senior or other notes;

e  scheduled principal payments in the remainder of 201098 $million, which we expect to repay with borrowings our Global Ling
proceeds from asset sales, or the issuance of debt or equity securities, depending on market;conditions

e  capital expenditures and leasing costs on properties;

e investments in current or future unconsolidataestees, including ourugust capital contributions of $97 million discussed below
(b); and

e depending on market conditions, direct acquisition of operating properties and/or portfolios of operating propertigstiibképrm
markets for direct, longerm investment.

(a) As of June 30, 2010, we h&dgproperties under development with a current investmer2@d $million and a total expected
investment of $59.8million when completed and leased, witt5®.3million remaining to be spent. We also He&Bcompleed
development properties with a current investment d Blion and a total expected investment$df2 billion when leased, withl82.7
million remaining to be spent.

(b) To the extenan unconsolidated investaequires properties from a third padiyrequires cash to retire debt or has other cash needs, we

may be required or agree to contribute our proportionate share of the equity component in casictmtididated investeBuring the

six months ended June 30, 2010, we used cash for inv@stmeor loans to the unconsolidated investeegppfoximately $37.7million,

which included investments i n.SéeHifcBsian ofour eymity commitmentsdelowf $109. 2 mi | | i
We expect to fund our cash needs principally with casin the following sources, all subject to market conditions:
e available cash balance2&1million at June 30, 2010);
e  property operations;

e fees and incentives earned for services performed on behalf of the property funds and distributions receivegrioperty funds;

e  proceeds from the disposition of propertiesd parcel®r other investment® third parties(including $58.9 million at June 30, 2010 held
in escrow pending the completion of td&ferred exchange transactigns)

e  cash proceeds fno the contributions of properties to property fu@ismarily to PEPF Il in August 2010)
. borrowing capacity undesur Global Ling($1.7 billion available as of June 30, 2010), other facilities or borrowing arrangements;

. proceeds from thissuance of egty securitieincluding sales under our-titemarket equity issuance program, under which we A&ve
million common shares remainignd

e  proceeds from the issuance of debt securities, including secured mortgage debt.

We may seek to retire or pinase our outstanding debt or equity securities through cash purchases, in open market purchases, privately
negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend on prevailing market conldjtiafis; our
requirementsgontractual restrictions and other factors. The amounts involved may be material. We have not repurchased any of our common
shares since 2003.

Equity Commitments related to future contributions to Property Funds

Certain property funds have equity coitrrents from us and our fund partners. We may fulfill our equity commitment through contributions of

properties or cash. Our fund partners fulfill their equity commitment with cash. In July and August 2010, ProLogis Mestdallkdnd and

PEPFllcalld capit al of approximately $75 milibnl), respectivalyn The prdp@&t2 funad willlusethe ( appr o
funds to pay down debt; and in the case of PEPF I, to acquire properties from us and third parties and to fund desadtprireatdition, we

and our fund partner in ProLogis North American Properties Fund XI made cash contributions to repay maturing securedehbrigage

connection with these capital calls, we will make cash contributions of approximately $97 anitiave will receive $19.6 million from

ProLogis Mexico Industrial Fund for the repayment of amounts due to us. All of the remaining equity commitments to tiydyprdpevill

expire unused later in August 2010.

For more information on our commitmengsthe property funds, see Net¢o our Consolidated Financial Statements in Iltem 1.
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Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities w88 . million and $41.0million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2008¢césely.
The decreasm 2010is due primarily tdhe settlement of $66.9 million of value added tax receivables in the first quarter of 2009. Ire2610, ¢
provided by operating activitiesas less thathe cash distributions paid on common sharesdandends paid on preferred shares.

Cash Investing and Cash Financing Activities

For the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, investing actigitdset cash of $22.5million andprovided net cash &1.4billion,
respectively. The following arhe significant activities for both periods presented:

e  We generadcash from contributions and dispositions of properties and land parc&&@bdsillion and $959.9million during 2010 and
2009, respectively.

e  Weinvested $86.8million in real estée during 2010 and8B5.8million for the same period in 2009; including costs for current and future
development projects and recurring capital expenditures and tenant improvements on existing operating dropeftiesve acquired
six properties wh an aggregate purchase price of $60.4 million.

e  Weinvested cash ofl37.7million and $.03.8million during 2010 and 2009, respectively, in unconsolidated investelesling
investmentsn connection wittproperty contributions we made, netrepaymentf advancedy the investeesln 2010, we acquired 15.8
million common units in PEPR for $109.2 million, which increased our common ownership in PEPR to 33.1%.

e  We received distributions from unconsolidated investees as a return of investmg&hbaniflion and $32.1million during 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

e In 2009 we received $1.3 billion in proceeds from the sale of our China operations and our property fund interests in Japaredbe pr
were used to pay down borrowings on @lobal Line

For the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, financing acpviiedednet cash of $6.5million and usedet cash of $.6hillion,
respectively. The following are the significant activities for both periods presented:

. In 201Q we purchased and tinguished $.2 billion original principal amount of our seniand convertibleotesand secured mortgage
debt for a ptal of $1.2 billion. In 2009we purchased and extinguished64.4million original principalamount of our convertible notes
for $6402 million.

e In 2010, we issued $1.1 billion of senior notes due 2017 and 2020 and $460.0 ahilomvertible notes due 201Fhe proceeds were
used to repay borrowings under our Global Line. We also issued $126.7 million in secured mortgage debt.

e  Wehad net payments on oGtobal Lineof $275.5million and$2.3billion during 2010 and 2009, respectively.

e On our other debtve made net payments of $5@lion and $%6.2million during 2010 and 2009, respectively.

e In April 2009, we received netpreeed s of $1. 1 billion from the issuance of 174.

Equity Offering, ve generated proceeds from the sale and issuance of common shares under our various common gharariiyans
from our atthemarket egity issuance programwf $28.7 million and$1.8million during 2010 and2009 respectively

e  We paid distributions of 3.8million and $.33.3million to our common shareholders during 2010 and 2009, respectively. We paid
dividends on our preferred shaads$12.7million during both 2010 and 2009.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Property Fund Debt

We had investments in and advances to the property funds at June 36f 20Bbillion. The property fundbad total third party debt of $8.5
billion (for the entire entity, not our proportionate share) at June 30, 2010 that matures as follows (in millions):

31

8

comn



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter Discount Total (1)
ProLogis California LLC...........ccccvevveriervrsieneneenens $ -$ -3 -$ -$ 1375% 1725$% -3 310.0
ProLogis North American Properties Fund .(2).... 122.7 111.8 - - - - - 2345
ProLogis North American Properties FundWill ... 0.1 0.3 625.8 12.4 - - - 638.6
ProLogis North American Properties Fund XI.(3). 32.3 0.6 0.7 0.4 - - - 34.0
ProLogis North American Industrial Fund (4)....... - - 52.0 80.0 - 1,112.2 - 1,244.2
ProLogis North American Industrial Fund Il (5).... 5.0 10.0 164.0 74.0 526.4 543.2 (8.0 1,314.6
ProLogis North American Industrial Fund IlI (6)... 13 120.7 90.5 385.6 1465 280.0 (2.3 1,022.3
ProLogis Mexico Industrial Fund (7).................... - - 99.1 170.0 - - - 269.1
ProLogis European Properties (8)..........cccocueeeene. 29.7 - 316.3 484.2  1,127.3 - - 1,957.5
ProLogis European Properties Fund 11.(9)............ 172.2 - 136.6 490.3 436.4 219.2 - 1,454.7
ProLogis Korea Fund..........cccccooeviiinieeeeiiieee - 15.1 30.5 - - - - 45.6
Total property funds $ 3633% 2585% 15155% 1,696.9% 2,3741% 2,327.1$% (10.3$% 8,525.1

(1) As of June 30, 2010, we had not guaranteed any of the third party debt of the property funds. Sgbeiote (n our role as the manager
of the property funds, we work with the property funds to refinance their maturing debt. As noted below, a majority of i A0t
have been substantially addressed. There can be no assurance that the property funds will be able to refinangegangebétdness
on terms as favorable as the maturing debt, or at all. If the property funds are unable to refinance the maturing indetitethvey

issued debt, they may be able to obtain funds by capital contributions from us and our fund graninsedling assets. Certain of the

property funds also have credit facilities, which may be used to obtain funds. Generally, the property funds is=ue tteig and utilize
the proceeds to repay borrowings under the credit facil®sliscussed efer, we have not presented information related to ProLogis

North American Properties Fund IX and X.

(2) The debt included in 2010 maturities is due December 2010. The property fund is in disaugikitmslender aboue-financing or

extending the termfdhis debt.

(3) In August 2010, the property fumdpaid $32.0 million ofts debt maturing in 2010 with capital contributions from us ($6.4 million) and

ourfund partner.

(4) TheProLogis North American Industrial Furdedit facility was terminated on May Z010.

(5) We have pledged properties we own directly, valued at approximately $ifo@, to serve as additional collateral on a loan payable to
an affiliate of our fungartner that is due in 2014 and related interest rate swap con@acisly 23, 200, we purchased an $81.0 million
loan to ProLogis North American Industrial Fund Il from the lender. The loan bears interest at 8%, matures in April B0d&caned by

13 buildings in the property fund.

(6) We have a note receivable from this propertydfuThe outstandingpalance at June 30, 2010 was $28ilion and is not included in the

maturities above as it is not third party debt.

(7) In addition to its existing third party debt, this property fund hassmpatgable to usggregating14.3million at June 30, 201@vhich will
be repaid in August 2010 with the proceeds from a capital call made by the property fund

(8) PEPR has & 1 Gnlllion credit facility (approximate} $122.8million) due December 2010, under which $29.7 million was outstanding
and$93.0 was available to borrow at June 30, 20h@ fund is currently negotiating a replacement credit facility with lenders.

9 Asd June 30, 20 1O0milioR &eitFacility (appraichatedy $Z08.®iillion), under which $72.2million was

out standi ng. In July 2010,

PEPF
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repay the outstanding balance under this facility. This facility expired on its scheduled maturity date of July.3Uh2G@0perty fund

is working on arranging a new facility.
Contractual Obligations

Distribution and Dividend Requirements

Our common share distribution policy is to distribute a percentage of our cash flow to ensure we will meet the distqbuéorents of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relative to maintaining our REIT status, while still allowing us to maxiaszedtered to
meet other cash needs such as capital improvements and other investment activities.

We paid a casHistribution of $0.15 per common share for the fnstl seconduarter on Februarg6, 2010and May 282010 respectivelyOn
August 2 201Q our Board declared the thiggiarter distribution of $0.15 per common share that will be payalgast 31 2010 to shareholders

of record on August 1010.

The payment of common share distributions is dependent upon our financial condition, operating results and REIT distyibir¢ioents and

may be adjusted at the discretion of the Board during the year.
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At June 30, 2010, we had three series of preferred shares outstanding. The annual dividend rates on preferred shapes &erigs.Z
preferred share, $1.69 per Series F preferred share and $1.69 per Series G preferred share. The dividenescararfgiyaiol arrears on the
last day of each quarter.

Pursuant to the terms of our preferred shares, we are restricted from declaring or paying any distribution with respenirtmowshares
unless and until all cumulative dividends with respethéopreferred shares have been paid and sufficient funds have been set aside for
dividends that have been declared for the then current dividend period with respect to the preferred shares.

Other Commitments

On a continuing basis, we are engaged in wariiages of negotiations for the acquisition and/or disposition of individual properties or portfolios
of properties.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Notél to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1.

Funds from Operations (AFFO0)

FFO is anonGAAP measure that is commonly used in the real estate industry. The most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO is net
earnings. Although NAREIT has published a definition of FFO, modifications to the NAREIT calculation of FFO are commoRBfisras
companies seek to provide financial measures that meaningfully reflect their business.

FFO is not meant to represent a comprehensive system of financial reporting and does not present, nor do we intermd, iatoqimgdete

picture of our financiecondition and operating performance. We believe net earnings computed under GAAP remains the primary measure of
performance and that FFO is only meaningful when it is used in conjunction with net earnings computed under GAAP. Roetlesre war
conglidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with GAAP, provide the most meaningful picture of our finanaial andditir
operating performance.

NAREI Téds FFO measure adjusts net earni ngs atomanpgainhsamnd lossesdrenttheGaleA P t 0 e x
of previously depreciated properties. We agree that these two NAREIT adjustments are useful to investors for the falowing re

(i) historical cost accounting for real estate assets in accordance with GAAP adbuough depreciation charges, that the value of real

estate assets diminishes predictably over time. NAR$dickllyst ated i n
risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investange considered presentations of operating results for real estate companies

that wuse historical cost accounting to be insufficfacthatredby t hemsel
estate, as an asset class, generalyeciates over time and depreciation charges required by GAAP do not reflect the underlying economic

realities.

(i) REITs were created as a legal form of organization in order to encourage public ownership of real estate as an asagtctlass th
investmenin firms that were in the businessoflehge r m owner shi p and management of real estate
definition of FFO, of gains and losses from the sales of previously depreciated operating real estate assets allovenmheestystsot
readily identify the operating results of thelenge r m assets that form the core of a REI Tés act
results between periods. We include the gains and losses from dispositions of land, development propedjeertiesiacquired in our
CDFS business segment, as well as our proportionate share of the gains and losses from dispositions recognized hyftirelprapert
our definition of FFO.

Our FFO Measures

At the same time that NAREIT created and defnetds FFO measure for the REIT industry, it also
member companies has the responsibility and authority to publish financial information that it regards as useful to theafhanc o mmuni t yo. W
believe shareholderpptential investors and financial analysts who review our operating results are best served by a defined FFO measure that
includes other adjustments to net earnings computed under GAAP in addition to those included in the NAREIT defined rRE&suf@iof

FFO measures are used by management in analyzing our business and the performance of our properties and we beliepertaat ithat

shareholders, potential investors and financial analysts understand the measures management uses.

We use our FB measures as supplemental financial measures of operating performance. We do not use our FFO measures as, nor should they be
considered to be, alternatives to net earnings computed under GAAP, as indicators of our operating performance, as titasiatiom

operating activities computed under GAAP or as indicators of our ability to fund our cash needs.

FFO, including significant nocash items

To arrive atFFO, including significant norcash itemswe adjust the NAREIT defined FFO measure towke]

(i) deferred income tax benefits and deferred income tax expenses recognized by our subsidiaries;

(i) current income tax expense related to acquired tax liabilities that were recorded as deferred tax liabilities in amatgtistextent the
expensas offset with a deferred income tax benefit in GAAP earnings that is excluded from our defined FFO measure;
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(i)  certain foreign currency exchange gains and losses resulting from certain debt transactions between us and our fddgitgdconsol
subsidiariesad our foreign unconsolidated investees;

(iv) foreign currency exchange gains and losses from the remeasurement (based on current foreign currency exchange ratdsjdf certa
party debt of our foreign consolidated subsidiaries and our foreign uncorsolide¢steesand

(v) markto-market adjustments associated with derivative financial instruments utilized to manage foreign currency and intefest rate ris

We calculatd=FO, including significant nortash itemgor our unconsolidated investees on theedasis as we calculate ¢tFO, including
significant norcash items

We use this FFO measure, including by segment and region, to: (i) evaluate our performance and the performance ofesuinpropgrarison

to expected results and results of jwes periods, relative to resource allocation decisions; (ii) evaluate the performance of our management; (iii)
budget and forecast future results to assist in the allocation of resources; (iv) assess our performance as compareedaicesiaie corapies

and the industry in general; and (v) evaluate how a specific potential investment will impact our future results. Beoaksedeeisions with

regard to our performance with a letegm outlook, we believe it is appropriate to remove the effectba@tterm items that we do not expect to
affect the underlying lonterm performance of the properties. The lbagn performance of our properties is principally driven by rental

income. While not infrequent or unusual, these additional items we exolgd&ulatingFFO, including significant nomash itemsare subject

to significant fluctuations from period to period that cause both positive and negativeesmoeffects on our results of operations, in

inconsistent and unpredictable directiong #r@ not relevant to our lortgrm outlook.

We believe investors are best served if the information that is made available to them allows them to align their dratpdisation of our
operating results along the same lines that our managemenm yé&sring and executing our business strategy.

FFO, excluding significant nenash items

When we began to experience the effects of the global economic crises in the fourth quarter of 2008, we dédtd&dribatding significant
noncash itemsdid not provide all of the information we needed to evaluate our business in this environment. As a result, we d&v®@loped
excluding significant nowgash itemgo provide additional information that allows us to better evaluate our operating performérise in
unprecedented economic time.

To arrive atFFO, excluding significant nenash itemswe adjusFFO, including significant nortash itemsto exclude the following items that
we recognized directly or our share recognized by our unconsolidateceiesest

Non-recurring items

(i) impairment charges related to the sale of our China operations;

(i)  impairment charges of goodwill; and

(iii)  our share of the losses recognized by PEPR on the sale of its investment in PEPF II.

Recurring items

@) impairment charges of ompleted development properties that we contributed or expect to contribute to a property fund;
(i) impairment charges of land or other real estate properties that we sold or expect to sell;

(i) impairment charges of other nogal estate assets, including eguritvestments;

(iv)  our share of impairment charges of real estate that is sold or expected to be sold by an unconsolidated investee; and
(v) gains or losses from the early extinguishment of debt.

We believe that these items, both recurring andreonrring, & driven by factors relating to the fundamental disruption in the global financial
and real estate markets, rather than factors specific to the company or the performance of our properties or investments.

The impairment charges of real estate propettiat we have recognized were primarily based on valuations of real estate, which had declined
due to market conditions, that we no longer expected to hold fotémnmginvestment. In order to generate liquidity, we decided to sell our China
operationsn the fourth quarter of 2008 at a loss and, therefore, we recognized an impairment charge. Also, to generate liquidity, we ha
contributed or intend to contribute certain completed properties to property funds and sold or intend to sell certat@faadgraperties to

third parties. To the extent these properties are expected to be sold at a loss, we record an impairment charge wkémdwenloEke

impairment charges related to goodwill and other assets that we have recognized were saundad\pg the decline in the real estate markets.

Certain of our unconsolidated investees have recognized and may continue to recognize similar impairment chargeseofirattrestaxpect
to sell, which impacts our equity in earnings of such ireesst

In connection with our announced initiatives to reduce debt and extend debt maturities, we have purchased portionss#auwitiésbAs a

result, we recognized net gains or losses on the early extinguishment of certain debt. Certain ohealidated investees have recognized or
may recognize similar gains or losses, which impacts our equity in earnings of such investees.
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During this turbulent time, we have recognized certain of these recurring charges and gains over several gedtterfositic quarter of 2008

and we believe it is reasonably likely that we may recognize similar charges and gains in the near future. As we doatisuws tgenerating

liquidity, we believe it is likely that we may recognize additional impairmeatggs of assets that we or our unconsolidated investees will sell in
the near future. We believe that as the financial markets stabilize, our liquidity needs change and the remainingiledgitabake existing
unconsolidated property funds to acguaur completed development properties expires (in August of 2010), the potential for impairment charges
on real estate properties will diminish to an immaterial amount. As we continue to monetize our land bank through develdispesitions,

we may dspose of this land at a gain or loss. We may also dispose of othstrategic assets at a gain or loss. However, we do not expect that
we will adjust our FFO measure for these gains or losses after 2010.

We analyze our operating performance primanjythe rental income of our real estate, net of operating, administrative and financing expenses,
which is not directly impacted by shdgrm fluctuations in the market value of our real estate or debt securities. As a result, although these
significantnon-cash items have had a material impact on our operations and are reflected in our financial statements, the remoeatebthe eff
these items allows us to better understand the core operating performance of our properties ovetethe long

As described above, we began uskO, excluding significant norash itemsincluding by segment and region, to: (i) evaluate our
performance and the performance of our properties in comparison to expected results and results of previous periddseselatoe
allocation decisions; (ii) evaluate the performance of our management; (iii) budget and forecast future results thasdistation of
resources; (iv) assess our performance as compared to similar real estate companies and the gethestaly and (v) evaluate how a specific
potential investment will impact our future results. Because we make decisions with regard to our performance wihna taritpok, we
believe it is appropriate to remove the effects of stesrh items that @ do not expect to affect the underlying leegn performance of the
properties we own. As noted above, we believe the-lerrg performance of our properties is principally driven by rental income. We believe
investors are best served if the informatioat is made available to them allows them to align their analysis and evaluation of our operating
results along the same lines that our management uses in planning and executing our business strategy.

As the impact of these recurring items dissipatessxpect that the usefulnessFFO, excluding significant nenash itemswill similarly
dissipate and we will go back to using oflyO, including significant nomash items.

Limitations on Use of our FFO Measures

While we believe our defined FFOmeasws ar e i mportant suppl ement al measures, neither
alone because they exclude significant economic components of net earnings computed under GAAP and are, thereforanlanaédiesl
tool. Accordingly tkey are two of many measures we use when analyzing our business. Some of these limitations are:

e  The current income tax expenses that are excluded from our defined FFO measures represent the taxes that are payable.

e  Depreciation and amortization of reatate assets are economic costs that are excluded from FFO. FFO is limited, as it does not reflect the
cash requirements that may be necessary for future replacements of the real estate assets. Further, the amortizdt®mpendépies
and leasing @sts necessary to maintain the operating performance of industrial properties are not reflected in FFO.

e  Gains or losses from property dispositions represent changes in the value of the disposed properties. By excluding dnesiegges,
FFO does notapture realized changes in the value of disposed properties arising from changes in market conditions.

e  The deferred income tax benefits and expenses that are excluded from our defined FFO measures result from the cefatiead of a d
income tax assefr liability that may have to be settled at some future point. Our defined FFO measures do not currently reflect any income
or expense that may result from such settlement.

e  The foreign currency exchange gains and losses that are excluded from ourlElEfnedasures are generally recognized based on
movements in foreign currency exchange rates through a specific point in time. The ultimate settlement of our foreign currenc
denominated net assets is indefinite as to timing and amount. Our FFO measlimetedrim that they do not reflect the current period
changes in these net assets that result from periodic foreign currency exchange rate movements.

e  The noncash impairment charges that we exclude fromF&i®, excluding significant nenash itemshave been or may be realized as a
loss in the future upon the ultimate disposition of the related real estate properties or other assets through thevéoroastf joroceeds.

e  The gains on extinguishment of debt that we exclude fronfFBQr, excludingsignificant norcash itemsprovides a benefit to us as we are
settling our debt at less than our future obligation.

We compensate for these limitations by using our FFO measures only in conjunction with net earnings computed under GA&Engtamr
decisions. To assist investors in compensating for these limitations, we reconcile our defined FFO measures to oursebraautied)under
GAAP. This information should be read with our complete financial statements prepared under GAAP and theerdistobddures we file with
the SEC to fully understand our FFO measures and the limitations on its use.

FFO, including significant noitash itemsattributable to common shares as defined by us #&a®illion and $879.6million for the six

months end& June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectivElRO, excluding significant nenash itemsattributable to common shares as defined by us
was 4.0 million and $310.#illion for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The reconciliationsatfriba€ble to
common shares as defined by us to net earnings attributable to common shares computed under GAAP are as followsdsiinHeateib(in
thousands):
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Six Months Ended

June 30,
2010 2009
Reconciliation of net earnings to FFO
Net earnings (loss) attributable to common sShares..............cocvviveriiiiii e $ (114,279  $ 417,597
Add (deduct) NAREIT defined adjustments:
Real estate related depreciati@m @mMOrtiZation.............cueviiiiiiiieen e, 167,174 143,304
Adjustments to gains on dispositions for depreciation................ovevieriee e (1,832 (1,203
Adjustments to (gains on) dispositions of riBvelopment properties.............ccocvvvevivivrceniieeennn. 103 (1,535
Reconciling items attributdé to discontinued operations:
Gains on dispositions of netevelopment ProPerties. ..........cvveiiieiiiieere et eeees (9,062 (185,521
Real estate related depreciation and amortizatiQml..............cooveieecerieeiiiee e 127 10,502
Total discontinUed OPEratiONS.........ccouiiiiiiii ettt ee e e e e e s e e e e e sebeeean (8,935, (175,019
Our share of reconciling items from unconsolidated investees:

Real estate related depreciation and amortizatiQm..............cooveieeceriieeiieeeniee e 76,832 75,981

Adjustment to gains/losses on dispositions for depreciation.... - (6,578

Other amortiZation IEIMS ... .....oiiiiiiie e ee et e e e e e s b e e enere e e e e e anbees (6,989 (6,161

Total unconsolidated INVESTEES...........ccoiiiiiiiiieeee e eees e reraeees 69,843 63,242
Total NAREIT defined adjuStMEeNtS.........coiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiicee e 226,353 28,789
SUDbtOtaiNAREIT defined FFO.......coiiiiiiiiie et s rma e e e 112,074 446,36
Add (deduct) our defined adjustments:
Foreign currency exchange 10SSes (QaiNS), ML ........c.iiiiiiiiiiierie e 4,229 (43,829
Deferred inCoOme taX DENELIL............uuiiiiiiiiiieeee e e e e e e e eee e aeananaee (42,398 (15,611
Our share of reconciling items frommconsolidated investees:

Foreign currency exchange [0SSes (Qains),.MEL..........ccuiiiiiieeneniie e 1,944 (234

Unrealized losses (gains) on derivative CONtractS,.NeL..........ccoovviiiieeniiniii e, (1,575 (5,959

Deferred income tax expense (DENEfit).........c.ccoiiiiiiiieeeiiiiii e 687 (1,294

Total unconsolidated investees.. . 1,056 (7,487
Total our defined adjUSIMENLS..........oiiiiiiiie e eeenes (37,113 (66,927
FFO, including significant non-cash items, attributable to common shares,

AS AEfINEA DY USi... ittt eeme bbb enbe e abe s 74,961 379,45¢
Impairment of real estate PrOPEILIES. .......cccuviiiiii it e e 367 84,218
Net gain related to disposed assefShina OPErations..............cuierueiiiierrieeiiee e - (3,315
Losses (gains) on early extinguishment of debl............coouiiiiieeiiiiiie e 14,258 (161,208
Write-off deferred extension fees associated with Global .Ling...............ccccovveiiiiiiiiien, 854 -
Our share of certain losses recognized by the property funds.........cccccoeoieeec e, 3,575 11,283

FFO, excluding significant norcash items, attributable to common shares,
as defined by us $ 94,015 $ 310,437

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and fexeigange related variability and earnings \iliiaon our foreign investments.

We have used certain derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign currency put option and forward contracts, ooiréoheign

currency market risk, as we deem appropriate. We have also used interest ragrserapres to reduce our interest rate market risk. We do not
use financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes and all financial instruments are entered into in acdbreatatgishied polices

and procedures.

We monitor our market risk eggures using a sensitivity analysis. Our sensitivity analysis estimates the exposure to market risk sensitive
instruments assuming a hypothetical 10% adverse change in year end interest rates. The results of the sensitivity anaigsisized below.
The sensitivity analysis is of limited predictive value. As a result, our ultimate realized gains or losses with redpessttoaie and foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during a future periodstnsegiieg at the time and the
prevailing interest and foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk
Our interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact of future interest rate changes on earnings and dashdioeige this
objective, we primarily borrow on a fixed rate basis for loAgem debt issances. At June 30, 201@¢ have thre MK bond agreementsith

variable interest rates. W®ncurrently entered intan interest rate swap agreemgntix the interest rate for énterm ofone ofthe notegotaling
¥10.0billion ($110.8million as of June 30, 2010)Ve have no other derivative contracts outstanding at June 30, 2010.
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Our primary interest rate risk is created by the variable rate lines of credit. During the dis emaéd June 30, 2010, we had weighted average
daily outstanding borrowis of $501.3 riflion on our variable rate lines of credit. Based on the results of the sensitivity analysis, which assumed
a 10% adverse change in interest rates, the estimatedtmsklexposure for the variable rate lines of credit was approximaledyndllion of

cash flow for the six months ended June 30, 2010.

The unconsolidated property funds that we manage, and in which we have an equity ownership, may enter intiérdemstcontracts. See
Note4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in lfefar further information on these derivatives.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the possibility that our financial results could be better or worse thred filanause of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

Our primary exposure to foreign currency exchange rates relates to the translation of the net income of our foreigesiutisitlleB dollars,
principally euro, British pound sterling and ydfo mitigate our foreign currency exchange exposure, we borrow in the functional currency of the
borrowing entity, when appropriate. We also may use foreign currency put option contracts to manage foreign currencyagratisinge

associated with the pjected net operating income of our foreign consolidated subsidiaries and unconsolidated investees. At June 30, 2010, we
had no put option contracts outstanding and, therefore, we may experience fluctuations in our earnings as a resulirofaiegggesrrency
exchange rates.

We also have some exposure to movements in exchange rates related to certain intercompany loans we issue from tirdent® nirag ase
foreign currency forward contracts to manage these risks. At June 30, 2010, we hadand éamtracts outstanding and, therefore, we may
experience fluctuations in our earnings from the remeasurement of these intercompany loans due to changes in foreigrcbamgraytes.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried ouhder the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in-Re)L8ader the Securitiesén
Exchange Act of 1934 (the fAExchange Acto) as of Jun€hieBAnanci@d 01 0. Basec
Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that informagidriad@gudisclosed in reports that

we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods #ipe St inles and

forms.

PART Il

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we and ounconsolidated investees are party to a variety of legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. We
believe that, with respect to any such matters that we are currently a party to, the ultimate disposition of any suafilmattersultin a

material adverse effect on our business, financial position or results of operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

As of June 30, 2010, no material changes had occurred in our risk factors as discussed in Item 1A of ouKForm 10

Iltem 2. UnregisteredSales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. [Removed and Reserved)].

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6. Exhibits

10.1 Summary of Outside Trustees Compensation

121 Compuation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

12.2 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Share Dividends
151 KPMG LLP Awareness Letter

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

37



31.2 Certification ofChief Financial Officer

321 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sathdeesict of 2002.
101 INS* XBRL Instance Document

101 SCH*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101 CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101 DEF*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101 LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101 PRE*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

* These exhibits are not deed filed for purposes of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 or otherwise subject to the liabilities of these sections, and are not part of any registration statement or inddrpoedeeencenito any
registration statement



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly caused this repoed®obétsigehalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PROLOGIS
By: /s/William E. Sullivan

William E. Sullivan
Chief Financial Officer

By: [s/ Jeffrey S. Finnin
Jeffrey S. Finnin
Managing Director and Chief Accounting Officer

Date:August 5, 2010
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PROLOGIS
Board of Trustees

May 13, 2010
Revised Trustee Compensation
Chairmands Fee $ 85,000
Board Retainer $ 80,000
Annual DSU Grant $ 100,0@
Audit Committee Chair $ 20,000
Management Development and Compensation Committee Ct $ 10,000
Investment and Finance Committee Chair $ 10,000
Corporate Responsibility Committee Chair $ 7,500
Meeting fee for meetings in excess of 20 per year $ 1,500

Elimination of Board and Committee Meeting Fees

EXHIBIT 10.1



PROLOGIS
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

EXHIBIT 12.1

Six Months
Ended
June 30, Year Ended December 31,
2010 (1) 2009(2) 2008 (2) 2007 2006 2005
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations................. $ (110,816 $ (265,013$ (282,280% 928,70¢$ 678,87¢$ 272,478
Add (Deduct):
INCOME tAXES.....cc oot e e (32,047 5,975 68,011 66,855 29,786 26,672
INtErest EXPENSE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiiieeei e 228,89¢ 373,308 385,06E 389,844 295,62 176,698
Earnings, as adjusted...........c.cecvereriniinerieneneseenns $ 86,036 $  114,267$ 170,06 $ 1,385,407$ 1,004,29/% 475,848
Fixed charges:
INtErESt EXPENSE. ....vveveeeeiiirieniesiresie e see e eiens $ 22889¢$ 373,30E$ 385,065 389,844% 295,62¢$ 176,698
Capitalized INtErest.......cocvevererieiieieree e, 30,784 94,205 168,782 123,88C 95,635 63,020
Total fixed charges... . $ 259,68:$% 467,51C$ 553,847$ 513,724%  391,264$% 239,718
Ratio of earnings, as adjusted, to fixed charges 0.3 0.2 0.3 2.7 2.6 2.0

(1) Our fixed charges exceed our earnings, as adjusted, by $173.6 million.

(2) The loss from continuing operations for 208nd 2008 includes impairment charges of $495.2 million and $901.8 million, respectivel
are discussed in our Annual Report on ForrK10Due to these impairment charges, our fixed charges exceed our earnings, as adjus

$353.2 million and $38.1 million for 2009 and 2008, respectively.



PROLOGIS

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
AND PREFERRED SHARE DIVIDENDS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

EXHIBIT 12.2

Six Months
Ended
June 30, Year Ended December 31,
2010 (1) 2009 (2) 2008 (2) 2007 2006 2005
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations.................. $ (110,816 $ (265,013$% (282,280$ 928,708$ 678,879% 272,47¢
Add (Deduct):
INCOME tAXES .. i iiii i reee e e (32,047 5,975 68,011 66,855 29,786 26,672
INtEreSt EXPENSE......uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et 228,89¢ 373,305 385,065 389,844 295,628 176,698
Earnings, as adjusted.... . $ 86,036 $ 114,267$ 170,79€$ 1,385,407$ 1,004,29/% 475,84¢€
Combined fixed charges and preferred share
dividends:
INEErESt EXPENSE....ccvviieiiie it eeeeee e, $ 228,89¢$ 373,305$% 385,065% 389,844% 295,62¢$ 176,698
Capitalized iNterest.........cccooveeriieeiiieece e 30,784 94,205 168,782 123,88C 95,635 63,020
Total fixed charges......... 259,682 467,51C 553,847 513,724 391,264 239,718
Prefared share dividends............ccccoeeiniiiecnnnnenne 12,738 25,423 25,423 25,423 25,416 25,416
Combined fixed charges and preferred share
AIVIdENS ..., $ 272,421 $ 492,933$ 579,27C$ 539,147$ 416,68C$ 265,134
Ratio of earnings, as adjusted, to combined
fixed charges and preferred share dividends 0.3 0.2 0.3 2.6 2.4 1.8

(1) Our fixed charges exceed our earnings, as adjusted, by $186.4 million.

(2) The loss from continuing operations for 2009 and 2008 includes impairment charges of $495.2 mi#i®dladanillion, respectively, the
are discussed in our Annual Report on ForrK10Due to these impairment charges, our combined fixed charges and preferred shai
dividends exceed our earnings, as adjusted, by $378.7 million and $408.5 million fon2(B®08, respectively.



EXHIBIT 15.1

The Board of Trustees
ProLogis:

Re: Registration Statement N@83157818 and 33357819 on Forn$-3; Registration Statement N@&33-26597,
33331421, 33346698, 33346700, 33369001, 33370274, 33207895,and 333141812 on Forns-8

With respect to the subject registration statements, we acknowledge our awareness of the use therein of our report
dated August 5, 2010 related to our review of interim financial information.

Pursuant to Ruld36 under the Sedties Act of 1933 (thé\ct), such report is not considered part of a registration

statement prepared or certified by an independent registered public accounting firm, or a report prepared or certified
by an independent registered public accounting firthiwithe meaning of Sectiorfsand 11 of the Act.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
August 5, 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Walter C. Rakowich, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ®@f ProLogis;

Based on my knowlagk, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading withe gspixt to
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly présestieineh
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registraandsaf, the periods presented in this report;

The registrantds other certifying officer and | aederesr@assponsi bl e f
defined in Exchange Act Rules 1885(e) and 15d.5(e)) and internatontrol over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a15(f) and 15€15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervisio, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeusiown to
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internabntrol over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatioralof fina
statements foexternal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantés dhnssabouttheur e cont
effectiveness of the disclosure cai$ and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

regi sgiantrastiost erna
cal quarter in the c

d Disclosed in this report any change in th
tés fo fis
e registrantés intern

e
mostrecentfiscaj uarter (the registrant?d i
reasonably likely to materially affect, th
The regi st r an offcer and thhve disclosedr biased op bun rgost recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrantés auditors and the aeqgdvialentcommi ttee o

functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial vegohtiage
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registonamtds ability

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in thé registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: August 5, 2010 s/ Walter C. Rakowich

Name:  Walter C. Rakowib
Title: Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, William E. Sullivan, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ@f ProLogis;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement ofa faater omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading withegspixt to
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financiatsments, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periodsrptheiserggort;

4. Theregistratis ot her certifying officer and | are responsible for establ
defined in Exchange Act Rules 1885(e) and 15d.5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Aeg Rul
13a15(f) and 15€15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the redistraluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b.  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal ceetrfinancial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatioialof fina
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally acceptediagqainmciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantés dhnsabouttheur e cont
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covereddnyrttbased on such evaluation; and

d Disclosed in this report any change in the regisgiantrasntiosterna
most recent fiscal guarter (t heananauglirepdrtytmarhastmateriblly affected, orisi s c a | quar
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrantds intern

5. The registrantodés other certifying off i cnefintema dontrol overdinaacialdi scl osed, b
reporting, to the registrantds auditors and the aegdvalent commi ttee o
functions):

a. Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the desigpevation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registr;amdt s ability

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves managent or ot her empl oyees who have a signi
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: August 5, 2010 s/ William E. Sullivan

Name:  William E. Sullivan
Title: Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@es| ey Act of 2002, each of the wundersigned officers
such officerds knowledge, that -Qfbréhe quarterlypenodénsledQune302 @t 0y ( Reeofi Repar Fo)
accompanies these certifications, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities ExchangedAetsoat@®ded, and

that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all materiattesg financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.

Dated:August 5, 2010 [s/ Walter C. Rakowich
Name: Walter C. Rakowich
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Dated: August 5, 2010 [s/ William E. Sullivan
Name:  William E. Sullivan
Title: Chief Financial Officer



